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References in this report to “we,” “our,” “us” or the “Company” refer to Altisource Residential Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise
indicated. References in this report to “AAMC” refer to Altisource Asset Management Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated.
References in this report to “ASPS” refer to Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated.
Special note on forward-looking statements
Our disclosure and analysis in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, which we refer to as the “Securities Act,” and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which we refer to as the
“Exchange Act.” In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,”
“expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts” or “potential” or the negative of these words and phrases or similar words or
phrases that are predictions of or indicate future events or trends and that do not relate solely to historical matters. You can also identify forward-looking
statements by discussions of strategy, plans or intentions.
The forward-looking statements contained in this report reflect our current views about future events and are subject to numerous known and unknown risks,
uncertainties, assumptions and changes in circumstances that may cause our actual results to differ significantly from those expressed in any forward-looking
statement. Factors that may materially affect such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

our ability to implement our business strategy;
our ability to make distributions to our stockholders;
our ability to acquire assets for our portfolio, including difficulties in identifying single-family rental assets and properties to acquire;
our ability to sell residential mortgage assets on favorable terms;
the impact of changes to the supply of, value of and the returns on single-family rental and mortgage assets;
our ability to acquire single-family rental properties or convert residential mortgage loans to rental properties and generate attractive returns;
our ability to complete proposed transactions in accordance with anticipated terms and on a timely basis or at all;
our ability to successfully integrate newly acquired properties into our portfolio of single-family rentals;
our ability to successfully integrate Main Street Renewal LLC as an additional property manager for our single-family rentals;
our ability to predict our costs;
our ability to effectively compete with our competitors;
our ability to apply the proceeds from financing activities or residential mortgage loan asset sales to target assets in a timely manner;
changes in the market value of our acquired real estate owned and single-family rental properties;
our ability to successfully modify or otherwise resolve sub-performing and non-performing loans;
changes in interest rates and in the market value of the collateral underlying our sub-performing and non-performing loan portfolios;
our ability to obtain and access financing arrangements on favorable terms or at all;
our ability to maintain adequate liquidity;
our ability to retain our engagement of AAMC;
the failure of ASPS to effectively perform its obligations under various agreements with us;
the failure of our mortgage loan servicers to effectively perform their servicing obligations;
our failure to maintain qualification as a REIT;
our failure to maintain our exemption from registration under the Investment Company Act;
the impact of adverse real estate, mortgage or housing markets;
the impact of adverse legislative, regulatory or tax changes; and
general economic and market conditions.

While forward-looking statements reflect our good faith beliefs, assumptions and expectations, they are not guarantees of future performance. Such forwardlooking statements speak only as of their respective dates, and we assume no obligation to update them to reflect changes in underlying assumptions or factors,
new information or otherwise. For a further discussion of these and other factors that could cause our future results to differ materially from any forward-looking
statements, please see Part II, Item 1A in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and “Item 1A. Risk factors” in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2015 .
ii
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Part I
Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)
Certain information contained herein is presented as of October 28, 2016 , which we have concluded is the latest practicable date for financial information prior to
the filing of this quarterly report.
1
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Altisource Residential Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

September 30, 2016

December 31, 2015

Assets:
Real estate held for use:
Land

$

213,174

$

56,346

Rental residential properties (net of accumulated depreciation of $17,615 and $7,127, respectively)

866,903

224,040

Real estate owned

326,358

455,483

1,406,435

735,869

Real estate assets held for sale

Total real estate held for use, net

169,841

250,557

Mortgage loans at fair value

628,304

960,534

Mortgage loans held for sale

4,038

317,336

Cash and cash equivalents

56,890

116,702

Restricted cash

23,382

20,566

Accounts receivable, net

27,839

45,903

Related party receivables

—

2,180

Prepaid expenses and other assets

14,372

Total assets

1,126

$

2,331,101

$

2,450,773

$

1,182,677

$

763,369

Liabilities:
Repurchase and loan agreements
Other secured borrowings
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Related party payables
Total liabilities

156,986

502,599

52,114

32,448

4,926

—

1,396,703

1,298,416

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 authorized shares; 53,869,642 shares issued and
outstanding as of September 30, 2016 and 55,581,005 shares issued and outstanding as of December
31, 2015
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

556
1,202,418

(250,315)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

539
1,184,174

(50,617)

934,398
$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2,331,101

1,152,357
$

2,450,773
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Altisource Residential Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)
Three months ended
September 30, 2016

Three months ended
September 30, 2015

Nine months ended
September 30, 2016

$

$

$

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015

Revenues:
Rental revenues
Change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans
Net realized gain on mortgage loans
Net realized gain on mortgage loans held for sale
Net realized gain on real estate
Interest income

9,590

4,021

24,242

$

7,561

(41,152)

27,499

(155,306)

130,842

9,428

12,874

30,340

47,528

19

100

50,166

505

26,307

13,914

94,833

36,926

209

115

425

595

4,401

58,523

44,700

223,957

Residential property operating expenses

15,011

16,574

51,215

45,890

Real estate depreciation and amortization

5,149

2,050

12,790

4,392

Total revenues
Expenses:

Acquisition fees and costs

5,202

861

8,306

1,738

Selling costs and impairment

11,570

10,705

50,003

34,235

Mortgage loan servicing costs

7,792

13,477

27,960

47,989

10,174

14,436

37,060

39,477

2,500

2,286

9,100

8,509

Interest expense
General and administrative
Management fees

4,658

4,988

14,234

25,039

Total expenses

62,056

65,377

210,668

207,269

Other income (expense)

—

(Loss) income before income taxes

1,518

(57,655)

Income tax (benefit) expense

(5,336)

(17)
$

Net (loss) income

27

(57,638)

$

(1.06)

$

(750)

3,518

(166,718)

20,206

106

(5,363)

$

(0.09)

$

53

(166,824)

$

(3.05)

$

20,153

(Loss) earnings per share of common stock - basic:
(Loss) earnings per basic share

$

Weighted average common stock outstanding - basic

54,178,129

57,056,625

54,722,828

0.35
57,154,734

(Loss) earnings per share of common stock - diluted:
(Loss) earnings per diluted share

$

Weighted average common stock outstanding - diluted
Dividends declared per common share

(1.06)

$

54,178,129
$

0.15

(0.09)

$

57,056,625
$

0.55

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(3.05)

$

54,722,828
$

0.60

0.35
57,351,014

$

1.73
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Altisource Residential Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
(Unaudited)
Common Stock
Number of Shares
December 31, 2015

55,581,005

Issuance of common stock, including stock option exercises
Repurchases of common stock

Additional Paid-in
Capital

Amount
$

556

18,707

$

1,202,418

—

(1,730,070)

—

—

Share-based compensation

—

—

493

Net loss

—

—

—

$

539

Common Stock
Number of Shares
December 31, 2014

57,192,212

Issuance of common stock, including stock option exercises
Repurchases of common stock

Amount
$

33,034

572

$

1,184,174

(32,874)

—
(250,315)

$

$

104

(12)

30

493

(166,824)
$

99,248

(166,824)
$

934,398

Total Equity
$

—

(19,971)

1,152,357
(18,784)

(32,874)

Retained Earnings

1,227,091

$

—

Additional Paid-in
Capital

—

(1,234,393)

(50,617)

Total Equity

—

(18,767)

—

53,869,642

$

30

(17)

Dividends on common stock ($0.60 per share)

September 30, 2016

Accumulated
Deficit

1,326,911
104

—

(19,983)

Dividends on common stock ($1.73 per share)

—

—

—

Share-based compensation

—

—

139

—

139

Net income

—

—

—

20,153

20,153

September 30, 2015

55,990,853

$

560

$

1,207,363

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(98,302)

$

21,099

(98,302)

$

1,229,022

(table of contents)

Altisource Residential Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
Nine months ended
September 30, 2016

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015

Operating activities:
Net (loss) income

$

(166,824)

$

20,153

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash used in operating activities:
Change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans

155,306

(130,842)

Net realized gain on mortgage loans

(30,340)

(47,528)

Net realized gain on mortgage loans held for sale

(50,166)

(505)

Net realized gain on real estate

(94,833)

(36,926)

Real estate depreciation and amortization

12,790

4,392

Selling costs and impairment

50,003

34,235

Accretion of interest on re-performing mortgage loans

(107)

Share-based compensation

(581)

493

139

8,840

4,271

Accounts receivable, net

6,612

(1,746)

Related party receivables

2,180

Amortization of deferred financing costs
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Deferred leasing costs

—

(69)

Prepaid expenses and other assets

(4,729)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

19,031

Related party payables
Net cash used in operating activities

(1,287)
(22)
15,584

4,926

(22,444)

(86,887)

(163,107)

(291,688)

(111,423)

(38,334)

(15,936)

Investing activities:
Investment in real estate
Investment in renovations
Real estate tax advances

(7,791)

Mortgage loan resolutions and dispositions

(18,438)

508,712

190,146

Mortgage loan payments

16,438

19,268

Disposition of real estate

315,973

119,368

Investment in derivative financial instrument

(55)

Disposition of preferred stock of affiliate

—

—

Change in restricted cash

18,000

(2,816)

Net cash provided by investing activities

(12,229)

500,439

188,756

Financing activities:
Issuance of common stock, including stock option exercises

51

204

(21)

(100)

Repurchases of common stock

(18,784)

(19,983)

Dividends on common stock

(30,206)

(67,685)

Payment of tax withholdings on exercise of stock options

Proceeds from the issuance of other secured debt

—

Repayments of other secured debt

221,691

(348,565)

(32,298)

Proceeds from repurchase and loan agreements

392,506

285,967

Repayments of repurchase and loan agreements

(460,025)

(386,480)

(8,320)

(9,250)

(473,364)

(7,934)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

(59,812)

17,715

Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of the period

116,702

66,166

Payment of deferred financing costs
Net cash used in financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents as of end of the period

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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56,890

$

83,881

(table of contents)

Altisource Residential Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
Nine months ended
September 30, 2016

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

$

Income taxes paid

27,983

$

34,879

180

—

Seller financing of assets acquired

489,259

—

Transfer of mortgage loans to real estate owned, net

168,395

359,378

Transfer of mortgage loans at fair value to mortgage loans held for sale, net

101,201

250,346

Changes in accrued capital expenditures
Changes in receivables from mortgage loan resolutions and dispositions, payments and real estate tax
advances to borrowers, net
Changes in receivables from real estate owned dispositions
Dividends declared but not paid

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(1,695)

164

(157)

2,550

(11,295)

1,949

8,226

30,617
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Altisource Residential Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2016
(Unaudited)
1 . Organization and basis of presentation
Altisource Residential Corporation is a Maryland real estate investment trust (“REIT”) focused on acquiring, owning and managing single-family rental (“SFR”)
properties throughout the United States. On December 21, 2012, we became a stand-alone publicly traded company with an initial capital contribution of $100
million .
We conduct substantially all of our activities through our wholly owned subsidiary, Altisource Residential, L.P. (“ARLP”), and its subsidiaries.
We employ a diversified SFR property acquisition strategy that includes acquiring portfolios of SFR properties and purchasing SFR properties on a one-by-one
basis from the Multiple Listing Service and alternative listing sources. Initially, our preferred acquisition strategy involved acquiring portfolios of sub-performing
and non-performing mortgage loans (“NPLs”). However, as market conditions evolved and the acquisition of NPL pools became more competitive and higherpriced, we introduced the alternative SFR property acquisition strategies described above. In the third quarter of 2015, we commenced the disposition of certain
NPLs and, as of September 30, 2016 , we had disposed of a substantial portion of our NPL portfolio.
We are managed by Altisource Asset Management Corporation (“AAMC” or our “Manager”). We do not have any employees; therefore, AAMC provides us with
dedicated personnel to administer our business and perform certain of our corporate governance functions. AAMC also provides portfolio management services in
connection with our acquisition and management of single-family rental properties and the ongoing management of our residential mortgage loans and real estate
owned (“REO”) properties. See Note 8 for a description of this related party relationship.
We have property management contracts with two separate third-party service providers to provide to us, among other things, leasing and lease management,
operations, maintenance, repair, property management and property disposition services in respect of our SFR and REO portfolios. We also have servicing
agreements with two separate mortgage loan servicers for the remaining mortgage loans in our portfolio.
Basis of presentation and use of estimates
The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“U.S. GAAP”). All wholly owned subsidiaries are included, and all intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. The preparation
of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.
The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and accompanying unaudited consolidated financial information, in our opinion, contain all adjustments
that are of a normal recurring nature and are necessary for a fair presentation of our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods.
The interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for a full year. We have omitted certain notes and other information from the interim consolidated
financial statements presented in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules and regulations.
These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our annual consolidated financial statements included within our 2015 Annual Report
on Form 10-K, which was filed with the SEC on February 29, 2016.
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentation, including acquisition fees and costs within our consolidated
statement of operations. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations.
Our financial statements include the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries as well as the variable interest entities (“VIEs”) of which we are the primary
beneficiary. We eliminate intercompany accounts and transactions upon consolidation.
7
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The determination of the VIE’s primary beneficiary requires an evaluation of the contractual and implied rights and obligations associated with each party’s
relationship with or involvement in the entity, an estimate of the entity’s expected losses and expected residual returns and the allocation of such estimates to each
party involved in the entity. We reassess our involvement with VIEs on a quarterly basis. Changes in methodologies, assumptions and inputs in the determination
of the primary beneficiary could have a material effect on the amounts presented within the consolidated financial statements.
In certain instances, we hold both the power to direct the most significant activities of each VIE as well as an economic interest in the entity, and, as such, we are
deemed to be the primary beneficiary or consolidator of the VIE. We have determined that our current and former securitization trusts, ARLP Securitization Trust,
Series 2014-1 (“ARLP 2014-1”), ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2014-2 (“ARLP 2014-2”) and ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2015-1 (“ARLP 2015-1”), are
VIEs of which we are the primary beneficiaries. See Note 6 for more information regarding our current and former securitization trusts.
Repurchases of common stock
During the first quarter of 2016, we determined that the 1,645,075 shares of common stock we repurchased during the last six months of 2015 should have been
classified within the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 as a reduction to common stock, for the par amount of the
common stock, and to additional paid-in capital, for the amount paid in excess of par, and that such repurchased shares should be included as shares unissued. We
previously classified common shares repurchased as treasury stock. The accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015 and the related
balances within our consolidated statement of stockholders' equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 have been corrected to eliminate treasury stock
of $25.0 million and reduce common stock and additional paid-in capital by an equivalent amount in the aggregate, resulting in no change in total equity as of
December 31, 2015. The previously reported consolidated statements of operations and cash flows were not impacted.
Deferred debt issuance costs
In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2015-03, Interest – Imputation of Interest
(Subtopic 835-30) – Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. ASU 2015-03 requires that debt issuance costs be presented on the balance sheet as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability instead of being presented as an asset. Debt disclosures include the face amount of the debt liability
and the effective interest rate. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-15, Interest – Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) – Presentation and Subsequent
Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements. ASU 2015-15 provides additional guidance to ASU 2015-03, which did not
address presentation or subsequent measurement of debt issuance costs related to line of credit arrangements. ASU 2015-15 noted that the SEC staff would not
object to an entity deferring and presenting debt issuance costs as an asset and subsequently amortizing the deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the
line of credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings on the line of credit arrangement.
Our application of ASU 2015-03 represents a change in accounting principle and has been applied retrospectively, which resulted in i) a reclassification of the
deferred debt issuance cost component of our deferred leasing and financing costs to repurchase and loan agreements and other secured borrowings and ii) a
reclassification of deferred leasing costs component of our deferred leasing and financing costs to prepaid expenses and other assets in our consolidated balance
sheets.
The following table represents the effect of the reclassification prior period balances as a result of this adoption ($ in thousands):
December 31, 2015
As Previously Reported

Adjustments

Current Presentation

Assets:
Deferred leasing and financing costs (1)

$

7,886

Prepaid expenses and other assets (1)

$

415

(7,886)
711

$

—
1,126

Liabilities:
Repurchase and loan agreements

767,513

Other secured borrowings
505,630
____________
(1) Upon adoption of ASU 2015-03, we reclassified our deferred leasing costs to prepaid expenses and other assets.
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(4,144)

763,369

(3,031)

502,599
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Recently issued accounting standards
In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic
230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The amendments in ASU 2016-15 address eight specific cash flow issues and apply to all
entities that are required to present a statement of cash flows under Topic 230. The amendments in ASU 2016-15 are effective for public business entities for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption during an interim period.
We do not expect the impact of adopting this standard to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments which
amends the guidance on measuring credit losses on financial assets held at amortized cost. The amendment is intended to address the issue that the previous
“incurred loss” methodology was restrictive for an entity's ability to record credit losses based on not yet meeting the “probable” threshold. The new language will
require these assets to be valued at amortized cost presented at the net amount expected to be collected with a valuation provision. This update standard is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. We do not expect the impact of adopting this standard to have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718). ASU 2016-09 makes several modifications to Topic 718
related to the accounting for forfeitures, employer tax withholding on share-based compensation and the financial statement presentation of excess tax benefits or
deficiencies. ASU 2016-09 also clarifies the statement of cash flows presentation for certain components of share-based awards. This update standard is effective
for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, although early adoption is permitted. We do not expect the impact of adopting this
standard to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In February 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). ASU 2016-02 requires that lessees recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms
greater than twelve months in the statement of financial position and also requires improved disclosures to help users of financial statements better understand the
amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim
reporting periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on our consolidated financial
statements.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10). ASU 2016-01 requires all equity investments to be measured
at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income (other than those accounted for under equity method of accounting or those that result in
consolidation of the investee). The amendments also require an entity to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair
value of a liability resulting from a change in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with
the fair value option for financial instruments. In addition, the amendments eliminate the requirement to disclose the fair value of financial instruments measured at
amortized cost for entities that are not public business entities and the requirement to disclose the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair
value that is required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet for public business entities. The amendments in this
update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We do not
expect the impact of adopting this standard to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). ASU 2014-09 is a comprehensive new revenue recognition
model requiring a company to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to a customer at an amount reflecting the consideration it expects to
receive in exchange for those goods or services. In August 2015, FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral
of the Effective Date, which effectively delayed the adoption date of ASU 2014-09 by one year. ASU 2014-09 is therefore effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2016. We are currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2014-09 on our consolidated financial statements.
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2. Asset acquisitions and dispositions
Real estate assets
Acquisitions, including those accounted for as business combinations
On September 30, 2016 , we acquired a portfolio of 4,262 single-family residential properties located in 14 states for an aggregate purchase price of $652.3 million
in two separate seller-financed transactions. The properties were acquired from two separate investment funds sponsored by Amherst Holdings, LLC (“Amherst”),
neither of which is a related party to us. In the first transaction, ARLP acquired 3,868 of the 4,262 properties through our entry into a Membership Interest
Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “MIPA”) with MSR I, L.P. (“MSR I”). Pursuant to the MIPA, ARLP acquired from MSR I 100% of the membership interests of
HOME SFR Equity Owner, LLC (“ HOME Equity ”), a newly formed special purpose entity and sole equity owner of HOME SFR Borrower, LLC (“ HOME
Borrower ”), which owned the 3,868 single-family residential properties. Following the consummation of the transaction, HOME Equity and HOME Borrower
became indirect, wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. In the second transaction, ALRP entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “PSA”) with
Firebird SFE I, LLC. Pursuant to the PSA, HOME Borrower , as assignee from ARLP, acquired the remaining 394 of the 4,262 properties. We refer to these
acquisitions, collectively, as the “ HOME SFR Transaction .”
We recognized acquisition fees and costs related to the HOME SFR Transaction of $3.9 million . The value of in-place leases was estimated at $9.8 million based
upon the costs we would have incurred to lease the properties and is being amortized over the weighted average remaining life of the leases of approximately seven
months as of date of the HOME SFR Transaction.
We recognized $163 thousand in revenues and $59 thousand in earnings related to the HOME SFR Transaction in our consolidated statements of operations for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 .
The preliminary allocation of the purchase price is based upon the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and is subject to change during the measurement
period. The purchase price allocation is preliminary as we are in the process of finalizing the valuation. The following table sets forth the preliminary allocation of
the estimated fair value of the assets acquired as well as the source of funds related to the HOME SFR Transaction ($ in thousands):
Estimated fair value of assets acquired:
Land

$

Rental residential properties

123,857
499,785

Real estate owned

18,895

Prepaid expenses and other assets (1)

9,809

Total preliminary allocation of purchase price

$

652,346

$

163,087

Source of funds:
Cash on hand
Debt financing (Note 6)

489,259
$

Total purchase price

652,346

________
(1) Represent estimated lease-in-place intangible asset.
On March 30, 2016, we completed the acquisition of 590 single-family residential properties located in five states from an unrelated third party for an aggregate
purchase price of approximately $64.8 million . We recognized acquisition fees and costs related to this portfolio acquisition of $0.6 million . The value of in-place
leases was estimated at $0.7 million based upon the costs we would have incurred to lease the properties and is being amortized over the weighted average
remaining life of the leases of seven months as of the acquisition date.
On August 18, 2015, we completed our acquisition of 1,314 single-family rental properties located in the Atlanta, Georgia market from an unrelated third party for
an aggregate purchase price of approximately $111.4 million . We recognized acquisition fees and costs related to this portfolio acquisition of $0.6 million . The
value of in-place leases was estimated at $1.6 million based upon the costs we would have incurred to lease the properties and was amortized over the weighted
average remaining life of the leases of seven months as of the acquisition date.
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During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we acquired 238 and 642 residential properties, respectively, under our one-by-one acquisition
program for an aggregate purchase price of $24.6 million and $64.7 million , respectively.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , we acquired 10 residential properties under our one-by-one acquisition program for an aggregate
purchase price of $1.1 million .
Supplemental pro forma financial information (unaudited)
The following supplemental pro forma financial information summarizes our results of operations as if the HOME SFR Transaction occurred on January 1, 2015 as
follows ($ in thousands, except per share amounts):
Three months ended September 30,
2016

Nine months ended September 30,

2015

2016

2015

Unaudited pro forma revenues

$

18,711

$

70,905

$

86,021

$

Unaudited pro forma net loss

$

(59,717)

$

(10,611)

$

(173,562)

$

Loss per basic common share

$

(1.10)

$

(0.19)

$

(3.17)

$

Weighted average common stock outstanding - diluted
Loss per diluted common share

54,178,129
$

Weighted average common stock outstanding - diluted

(1.10)

57,056,625
$

54,178,129

(0.19)

54,722,828
$

57,056,625

(3.17)

257,908
(2,317)
(0.04)
57,154,734

$

54,722,828

(0.04)
57,154,734

The following table presents the adjustments included for each period ($ in thousands):
Three months ended September 30,
2016
Revenues from consolidated statement of operations

$

Add: historical revenues of acquired properties not
reflected in consolidated statement of operations

Nine months ended September 30,

2015
4,401

$

14,310

2016
58,523

$

12,382

2015
44,700

$

223,957

41,321

33,951

Unaudited pro forma revenues

$

18,711

$

70,905

$

86,021

$

257,908

Net (loss) income from consolidated statement of
operations

$

(57,638)

$

(5,363)

$

(166,824)

$

20,153

Plus: historical net income of acquired properties not
reflected in consolidated statement of operations

8,416

7,597

25,566

20,157

Less: pro forma depreciation and amortization

(5,157)

(6,558)

(15,472)

(25,281)

Less: pro forma interest expense

(4,737)

(4,737)

(14,212)

(14,212)

(601)

(1,550)

(2,620)

(3,134)

Less: pro forma management fees
Unaudited pro forma net loss

$

(59,717)

$

(10,611)

$

(173,562)

$

(2,317)

The supplement pro forma financial information for all periods presented was adjusted to reflect real estate depreciation and amortization on the acquired
properties and related intangible assets, interest expense on the related financing facility and incremental management fees that would have been incurred under the
asset management agreement. The supplemental pro forma financial information is for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the actual
results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition had taken place on January 1, 2015, nor does it purport to represent or be indicative of the
results of operations for future periods.
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Dispositions
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we sold 604 and 2,200 residential properties, respectively, and recorded $26.3 million and $94.8
million , respectively, of net realized gains on real estate.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , we sold 357 and 932 residential properties, respectively, and recorded $13.9 million and $36.9
million , respectively, of net realized gains on real estate.
Mortgage loan assets
Resolutions
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we resolved 109 and 400 mortgage loans, respectively, primarily through short sales, refinancing
and foreclosure sales. In connection with these resolutions, we recorded $9.4 million and $30.3 million , respectively, of net realized gains on mortgage loans.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , we resolved 145 and 565 mortgage loans, respectively, primarily through short sales, refinancing
and foreclosure sales. In addition, we sold 137 loans that had transitioned to re-performing status from prior non-performing loan acquisitions to a third party
purchaser during June 2015. In connection with these resolutions and disposals, we recorded $12.9 million and $47.5 million , respectively, of net realized gains on
mortgage loans.
Dispositions
During the nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we sold 1,974 of our mortgage loans held for sale to third party purchasers. In connection with these sales, we
recorded $50.2 million of net realized gains on mortgage loans held for sale.
During June 2015, we sold 52 loans from the re-performing mortgage loans purchased in June 2014 to a third party purchaser. In connection with this sale, we
recognized $0.3 million of net realized gains on mortgage loans held for sale.
Transfers of mortgage loans to real estate owned
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we transferred an aggregate of 246 and 914 mortgage loans, respectively, to REO at an aggregate
fair value based on BPOs of $49.5 million and $173.8 million , respectively. Such transfers occur when the foreclosure sale is complete. In connection with these
transfers to REO, we recorded $10.7 million and $34.8 million , respectively, in change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans that resulted from marking the
properties to their most current market value.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , we transferred an aggregate of 507 and 1,918 mortgage loans, respectively, to REO at an aggregate
fair value based on BPOs of $90.7 million and $359.4 million , respectively. Such transfers occur when the foreclosure sale is complete. In connection with these
transfers to REO, we recorded $17.0 million and $68.4 million , respectively, in change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans that resulted from marking the
properties to their most current market value.
Due diligence costs
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we recognized $1.3 million and $1.9 million , respectively, of due diligence costs, and we
recognized a nominal amount and $0.4 million , respectively, of due diligence costs during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 . These due
diligence costs are included in our consolidated statement of operations as acquisition fees and costs.
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3 . Real estate assets, net
Real estate held for use
As of September 30, 2016 , we had 9,892 single-family residential properties held for use. Of these properties, 7,079 had been leased, 587 were listed and ready for
rent and 875 were in varying stages of renovation and unit turn status. With respect to the remaining 1,351 REO properties, we will make a final determination
whether each property meets our rental profile after (a) applicable state redemption periods have expired, (b) the foreclosure sale has been ratified, (c) we have
recorded the deed for the property, (d) utilities have been activated and (e) we have secured access for interior inspection. A majority of the REO properties are
subject to state regulations that require us to await the expiration of a redemption period before a foreclosure can be finalized. Once the redemption period expires,
we immediately proceed to record a new deed, take possession of the property, activate utilities and start the inspection process in order to make our final
determination. If an REO property meets our rental profile, we determine the extent of renovations that are needed to generate an optimal rent and maintain
consistency of renovation specifications. If we determine that the REO property will not meet our rental profile, we list the property for sale, in certain instances
after renovations are made to optimize the sale proceeds.
As of December 31, 2015 , we had 4,933 single-family residential properties held for use. Of these properties, 2,118 had been leased, 264 were listed and ready for
rent and 350 were in various stages of renovation. With respect to the remaining 2,201 REO properties, we were in the process of determining whether these
properties would meet our rental profile.
With respect to residential rental properties classified as held for use, we perform an impairment analysis using estimated cash flows if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired, such as prolonged vacancy, identification of materially adverse legal or environmental factors,
changes in expected ownership period or a decline in market value to an amount less than the carrying amount. This analysis is performed at the property level.
These cash flows are estimated based on a number of assumptions that are subject to economic and market uncertainties, including, among others, demand for
rental properties, competition for customers, changes in market rental rates, costs to operate each property and expected ownership periods. If the carrying amount
of a held for use asset exceeds the sum of its undiscounted future operating and residual cash flows, an impairment loss is recorded for the difference between
estimated fair value of the asset and the carrying amount. We are not able to recover any such impairments should the estimated fair value subsequently improve.
We generally estimate the fair value of assets held for use by using BPOs. In some instances, appraisal information may be available and is used in addition to
BPOs.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we recognized $1.2 million and $6.2 million , respectively, of impairment on real estate held for use.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, we recognized no impairment on our real estate held for use.
Real estate held for sale
As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 , our real estate held for sale included 839 and 1,583 REO properties, respectively, having an aggregate carrying
value of $169.8 million and $250.6 million , respectively. Management determined to divest these properties because they do not meet our residential rental
property investment criteria.
We record residential properties held for sale at the lower of the carrying amount or estimated fair value less costs to sell. The impairment loss, if any, is the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value less costs to sell. In the event that the estimated fair value of impaired properties held for
sale subsequently improves, we are able to recover impairments to the extent previously recognized.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we recognized $7.2 million and $23.0 million , respectively, of impairment on our real estate held
for sale.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , we recognized $3.6 million and $13.4 million , respectively, of impairment on our real estate held
for sale.
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4. Mortgage loans
The following table sets forth our mortgage loans at fair value, the related unpaid principal balance and market value of underlying properties by delinquency
status as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 ($ in thousands):

Number of Loans

Carrying Value

Market Value of
Underlying Properties

Unpaid Principal Balance

September 30, 2016
Current

761

$

125,038

$

161,706

$

193,704

30

75

11,444

17,213

60

42

5,844

8,362

9,809

90

407

54,049

83,064

91,907

431,929

18,371

Foreclosure

2,432

Mortgage loans at fair value

3,717

$

628,304

$

608,258
878,603

$

620,472
934,263

730

$

124,595

$

165,645

$

177,348

December 31, 2015
Current
30

80

12,003

18,142

21,858

60
90

38

5,688

8,088

8,766

984

130,784

216,717

196,963

Foreclosure

3,907

687,464

946,962

917,671

Mortgage loans at fair value

5,739

$

960,534

$

1,355,554

$

1,322,606

The following table sets forth the carrying value of our mortgage loans held for sale, the related unpaid principal balance and market value of underlying properties
by delinquency status as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 ($ in thousands):

Number of Loans

Carrying Value

Market Value of
Underlying Properties

Unpaid Principal Balance

September 30, 2016
Current
30
90

13

$

1,357

7

$

713

1,985

$

1,508

2,600
1,642

1

485

489

990

Foreclosure

10

1,483

1,998

2,212

Mortgage loans held for sale

31

$

4,038

$

5,980

$

7,444

Current

58

$

10,864

$

13,466

$

17,776

30

26

7,616

10,013

12,200

60

6

668

775

1,063

90

328

73,164

101,121

103,395

Foreclosure

879

225,024

314,991

330,573

December 31, 2015

Mortgage loans held for sale

1,297

$

317,336

$

440,366

$

465,007

As of September 30, 2016 , our mortgage loans held for sale include our remaining re-performing residential mortgage loans that we initially acquired in June
2014. We determined to dispose of these mortgage loans in order to take advantage of attractive market pricing and because we do not expect them to be rental
candidates.
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Re-performing residential mortgage loans
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 , we recognized no provision for loan loss and no adjustments to the amount of the accretable
yield for our re-performing residential mortgage loans. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we accreted $35 thousand and $107 thousand ,
respectively, into interest income with respect to our re-performing loans. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , we accreted $112 thousand
and $581 thousand into interest income with respect to our re-performing loans. At September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 , these re-performing loans had a
UPB of $6.0 million and a carrying value of $4.0 million at each date. We included these loans in mortgage loans held for sale.
The following table presents changes in the balance of the accretable yield for the periods indicated:
Nine months ended
September 30, 2016

Accretable Yield
Balance at the beginning of the period

$

Payments and other reductions, net

2,146

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015
$

—

Accretion

(107)
$

Balance at the end of the period

15

2,039

7,640
(3,285)
(581)

$

3,774
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5. Fair value of financial instruments
The following table sets forth the fair value of financial assets and liabilities by level within the fair value hierarchy as of September 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015 ($ in thousands):
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

Observable Inputs
Other Than Level 1
Prices

Unobservable
Inputs

September 30, 2016
Recurring basis (assets)
Mortgage loans at fair value

$

Interest rate cap derivative (1)

—

$

—

$

628,304

—

55

—

—

—

169,841

—

—

4,038

Repurchase and loan agreements

—

1,189,253

—

Other secured borrowings

—

157,950

—

Nonrecurring basis (assets)
Real estate assets held for sale
Not recognized on consolidated balance sheets at fair value (assets)
Mortgage loans held for sale
Not recognized on consolidated balance sheets at fair value (liabilities)

December 31, 2015
Recurring basis (assets)
Mortgage loans at fair value

$

—

$

—

$

960,534

Nonrecurring basis (assets)
Real estate assets held for sale

—

—

250,557

—

—

317,336

—

767,513

—

Not recognized on consolidated balance sheets at fair value (assets)
Mortgage loans held for sale
Not recognized on consolidated balance sheets at fair value (liabilities)
Repurchase and loan agreements

Other secured borrowings
—
502,268
_____________
(1) We include the fair value of our interest rate cap derivative within prepaid expenses and other assets in our consolidated balance sheets.

—

We have not transferred any assets from one level to another level during the three or nine months ended September 30, 2016 or during the year ended
December 31, 2015 .
The carrying values of our cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, related party receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and related party payables
are equal to or approximate fair value. The fair values of mortgage loans at fair value and NPLs held for sale are estimated using our asset manager's proprietary
discounted cash flow pricing model. The fair value of re-performing mortgage loans held for sale is estimated using the present value of the future estimated
principal and interest payments of the loan, with the discount rate used in the present value calculation representing the estimated effective yield of the loan. The
fair value of our interest rate cap derivative is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis based on the contractual terms of the derivative. The fair value of the
repurchase and loan agreements is estimated using the income approach based on credit spreads available to us currently in the market for similar floating rate
debt. The fair value of other secured borrowings is estimated using observable market data.
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The following table sets forth the changes in our level 3 assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis ($ in thousands):
Three months ended
September 30, 2016

Three months ended
September 30, 2015

Nine months ended
September 30, 2016

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015

$

$

$

$

Mortgage loans at fair value
Beginning balance
Change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans

707,445

43,525

20,542

170,845

12,874

30,340

47,528

1,914

(250,346)

(101,201)

(250,346)

(34,967)

(57,882)

(119,794)

(205,120)

Real estate tax advances to borrowers
Ending balance

$

Change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans at fair value held at
the end of the period
$

1,959,044

9,428

Transfers of mortgage loans at fair value to mortgage loans held
for sale, net

Transfer of mortgage loans to real estate owned, net

960,534

(8,086)

Net realized gain on mortgage loans

Mortgage loan resolutions and payments

1,716,489

1,161

6,611

(48,591)

(90,696)

6,255

18,002

(168,372)

628,304

$

1,380,575

$

(15,027)

$

13,022

$

628,304

(5,309)

(359,378)
$

1,380,575

$

93,874

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of our mortgage loans are discount rates, forecasts of future home prices, alternate loan
resolution probabilities, resolution timelines and the value of underlying properties. Significant changes in any of these inputs in isolation could result in a
significant change to the fair value measurement. A decline in the discount rate in isolation would increase the fair value. A decrease in the housing pricing index
in isolation would decrease the fair value. Individual loan characteristics such as location and value of underlying collateral affect the loan resolution probabilities
and timelines. An increase in the loan resolution timeline in isolation would decrease the fair value. A decrease in the value of underlying properties in isolation
would decrease the fair value.
The following table sets forth quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used to measure the fair value of our mortgage loans as of the
dates indicated:
Input

September 30, 2016

December 31, 2015

Equity discount rate

15.0%

15.0%

Debt to asset ratio

65.0%

65.0%

3.5% over 1 month LIBOR

3.5% over 1 month LIBOR

-15.2% to 16.9%

0.0% to 10.2%

Loan resolution probabilities — modification

0% to 11.4%

0% to 44.7%

Loan resolution probabilities — rental

0% to 100.0%

0% to 100.0%

Loan resolution probabilities — liquidation

0% to 100.0%

0% to 100.0%

Cost of funds
Annual change in home pricing index

Loan resolution timelines (in years)
Value of underlying properties
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0.1 - 5.5

0.1 - 5.6

$3,000 - $4,250,000

$3,000 - $4,500,000
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6. Borrowings
Repurchase and loan agreements
Our operating partnership and certain of its Delaware statutory trust and/or limited liability company subsidiaries, as applicable, have entered into master
repurchase agreements and loan agreements to finance the acquisition and ownership of single-family rental properties, other REO properties and mortgage loans
in our portfolio. We have effective control of the assets associated with these agreements and therefore have concluded these are financing arrangements. As of
September 30, 2016 , the weighted average annualized interest rate on borrowings under our repurchase and loan agreements was 3.72% , excluding amortization
of deferred debt issuance costs.
We had entered into three separate repurchase agreements and two loan agreements to finance the acquisition and ownership of single-family rental properties,
other REO properties and mortgage loans. In March 2016, our repurchase agreement with Deutsche Bank (“DB”) expired pursuant to its terms and is no longer
outstanding. Therefore, at September 30, 2016 , we were party to two repurchase agreements and two loan agreements. Below is a description of each agreement
outstanding during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 :
Repurchase Agreements
•

Credit Suisse (“CS”) is the lender on the repurchase agreement entered into on March 22, 2013, (the “CS repurchase agreement”) with an initial aggregate
maximum borrowing capacity of $100.0 million . During 2014 and 2015, the CS repurchase agreement was amended on several occasions, ultimately
increasing the aggregate maximum borrowing capacity to $275.0 million on December 31, 2015 with a maturity date of April 18, 2016. On March 31,
2016, we entered into an amended and restated repurchase agreement with CS that increased our aggregate borrowing capacity to $350.0 million ,
extended the maturity date to March 30, 2017 and removed the REO sublimit under the facility so that 100% of the financed assets can be REO
properties.

•

DB was the lender on the repurchase agreement dated September 12, 2013 (the “DB repurchase agreement”). During March 2016, upon expiration of the
DB repurchase agreement in accordance with its terms, we repaid the remaining balance of the DB repurchase agreement and transferred the collateral to
our other existing facilities.

•

Wells Fargo (“Wells”) is the lender under the repurchase agreement dated September 23, 2013 (the “Wells repurchase agreement”) with an initial
aggregate maximum borrowing capacity of $200.0 million . Throughout 2013, 2014 and 2015, the Wells repurchase agreement was amended on several
occasions, ultimately increasing the aggregate maximum borrowing capacity to $750.0 million with a maturity date of September 27, 2017.

Loan Agreements
•

Nomura Corporate Funding Americas, LLC (“Nomura”) is the lender under a loan agreement dated April 10, 2015 (the “Nomura loan agreement”) with
an initial aggregate maximum funding capacity of $100.0 million . The Nomura loan agreement was amended during 2015, ultimately increasing the
maximum funding capacity to $200.0 million on December 31, 2015 with a maturity date of April 8, 2016. On April 7, 2016, we entered into an amended
and restated loan and security agreement with Nomura that increased our aggregate borrowing capacity to $250.0 million and extended the termination
date to April 16, 2017.

•

In connection with the seller financing related to the HOME SFR Transaction, on September 30, 2016, we entered into a loan agreement (the “Original
MSR loan agreement”) between HOME Borrower, the sellers (collectively, the “Lenders”) and MSR Lender LLC, as agent. Pursuant to the Original MSR
loan agreement, HOME Borrower borrowed approximately $489.3 million from the Lenders (the “MSR Loan”). Effective October 14, 2016, the Original
MSR loan agreement was assigned to MSR Lender, LLC (“MSR Lender”) and, in connection with MSR Lender’s securitization of the MSR Loan, we and
MSR Lender amended and restated the Original MSR loan agreement (the “A&R MSR loan agreement”) to match the terms of the bonds in MSR
Lender's securitization of the MSR Loan. The aggregate amount of the MSR Loan and the aggregate interest rate of the MSR Loan remained unchanged
from the Original Loan Agreement. The MSR Loan is a floating rate loan, composed of eight floating rate components, interest on each of which is
computed monthly based on one-month LIBOR plus a fixed component spread. The initial maturity date of the MSR Loan is November 9, 2018 (the
“Initial Maturity Date”). HOME Borrower has the option to extend the MSR Loan beyond the Initial Maturity Date for three successive one-year terms to
an ultimate maturity date of November 9, 2021, provided, among other things, that there is no event of default under the A&R MSR loan
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agreement on each maturity date. The MSR Loan is secured by the membership interests of HOME Borrower and the properties and other assets of
HOME Borrower.
Following all of the amendments described above, the maximum aggregate funding available to us under these repurchase and loan agreements as of
September 30, 2016 was $1.8 billion , subject to certain sublimits, eligibility requirements and conditions precedent to each funding. As of September 30, 2016 , an
aggregate of $1.2 billion was outstanding under our repurchase and loan agreements. Each of the CS repurchase agreement, the Wells repurchase and the Nomura
loan agreement are fully guaranteed by us.
The following table sets forth data with respect to our repurchase and loan agreements as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 ($ in thousands):
Maximum
Borrowing
Capacity

Book Value of
Collateral

Amount
Outstanding

Amount of
Available Funding

September 30, 2016
CS repurchase agreement due March 30, 2017

$

350,000

$

337,268

$

211,382

$

138,618

Wells repurchase agreement due September 27, 2017

750,000

621,699

334,726

415,274

Nomura loan agreement due April 16, 2017

250,000

230,765

153,886

96,114

Original MSR loan agreement due November 15, 2018

489,259

642,537

489,259

—

Less: deferred debt issuance costs

—

—

(6,576)

—

$

1,839,259

$

1,832,269

$

1,182,677

$

$

275,000

$

335,184

$

194,346

$

650,006

December 31, 2015
CS repurchase agreement due April 18, 2016
Wells repurchase agreement due September 27, 2017
DB repurchase agreement due March 11, 2016
Nomura loan agreement due April 8, 2016
Less: deferred debt issuance costs
$

80,654

750,000

708,275

371,130

378,870

54,944

130,863

54,944

—

200,000

204,578

147,093

52,907

—

—

1,279,944

$

1,378,900

(4,144)
$

763,369

—
$

512,431

Terms and covenants related to our repurchase agreements
Under the terms of our two remaining repurchase agreements, as collateral for the funds drawn thereunder, subject to certain conditions, our operating partnership
and/or an intervening limited liability company subsidiary will sell to the applicable lender equity interests in the Delaware statutory trust subsidiary that owns the
applicable underlying mortgage assets on our behalf, or the trust will directly sell such underlying mortgage or REO assets. In the event the lender determines the
value of the collateral has decreased, the lender has the right to initiate a margin call and require us, or the applicable trust subsidiary, to post additional collateral
or to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings. The price paid by the lender for each mortgage or REO asset we finance under the repurchase agreements is
based on a percentage of the market value of the mortgage or REO asset and, in the case of mortgage assets, may depend on its delinquency status. With respect to
funds drawn under the repurchase agreements, our applicable subsidiary is required to pay the lender interest based on LIBOR or at the lender’s cost of funds plus
a spread calculated based on the type of applicable assets collateralizing the funding, as well as certain other customary fees, administrative costs and expenses to
maintain and administer the repurchase agreements. We do not collateralize any of our repurchase facilities with cash.
Pursuant to the CS repurchase agreement, we are entitled to collateralize a portion of the facility with securities. As of September 30, 2016 , approximately $21.0
million of the amount outstanding under the CS repurchase agreement was collateralized by $34.0 million of the Class A-2 Notes issued and retained by us in
connection with the securitization completed in July 2015 by ARLP 2015-1.
Each of the repurchase agreements require us to maintain various financial and other covenants, including maintaining a minimum adjusted tangible net worth, a
maximum ratio of indebtedness to adjusted tangible net worth and specified levels of unrestricted cash. In addition, both of the repurchase agreements contain
customary events of default.
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Terms and covenants related to the Nomura loan agreement
Under the terms of the Nomura loan agreement, subject to certain conditions, Nomura may advance funds to us from time to time, with such advances
collateralized by single-family rental properties and other REO properties. The advances paid under the Nomura loan agreement with respect to the applicable
properties from time to time will be based on a percentage of the market value of the properties. Under the terms of the Nomura loan agreement, we are required to
pay interest based on the one-month LIBOR plus a spread and certain other customary fees, administrative costs and expenses in connection with Nomura's
structuring, management and ongoing administration of the facility.
The Nomura loan agreement requires us to maintain various financial and other covenants, including a minimum adjusted tangible net worth, a maximum ratio of
indebtedness to adjusted tangible net worth and specified levels of unrestricted cash. In addition, the Nomura loan agreement contains events of default (subject to
certain materiality thresholds and grace periods), including payment defaults, breaches of covenants and/or certain representations and warranties, cross-defaults,
certain material adverse changes, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings and other events of default customary for this type of transaction. The remedies for such
events of default are also customary for this type of transaction and include the acceleration of the principal amount outstanding under the Nomura loan agreement
and the liquidation by Nomura of the REO properties then subject thereto.
Terms and covenants related to the A&R MSR loan agreement
Under the terms of the A&R MSR loan agreement, the MSR Loan is a floating rate loan, composed of eight floating rate components, interest on each of which is
computed monthly based on one-month LIBOR plus a fixed component spread. The MSR Loan is non-recourse to us and is secured by a lien on the membership
interests of HOME Borrower and the acquired properties and other assets of HOME Borrower . The assets of HOME Borrower are the primary source of
repayment and interest on the MSR Loan, thereby making the cash proceeds received by HOME Borrower of rent payments and any sales of the acquired
properties the primary sources of the payment of interest and principal by HOME Borrower to MSR Lender. The A&R MSR loan agreement requires that HOME
Borrower comply with various affirmative and negative covenants that are customary for loans of this type, including limitations on indebtedness HOME Borrower
can incur, limitations on sales and dispositions of the MSR Properties and various restrictions on the use of cash generated by the operations of the MSR Properties
while the MSR Loan is outstanding. We have limited indemnification obligations for wrongful acts taken by HOME Equity and HOME Borrower in connection
with the secured collateral.
Even though the MSR Loan is non-recourse to us and all of our subsidiaries other than HOME Equity and HOME Borrower , we have agreed to limited bad act
indemnification obligations to the MSR Lender for the payment of (i) certain losses arising out of certain bad or wrongful acts of HOME Equity and HOME
Borrower with respect to the MSR Loan and (ii) the principal amount of the MSR Loan and all other obligations under the A&R MSR loan agreement in the event
we cause certain voluntary bankruptcy events of HOME Equity or HOME Borrower . Any of such liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and/or financial condition.
We are currently in compliance with the covenants and other requirements with respect to the repurchase and loan agreements. We monitor our lending partners’
ability to perform under the repurchase and loan agreements and have concluded there is currently no reason to doubt that they will continue to perform under the
repurchase and loan agreements as contractually obligated.
Other secured debt
On June 29, 2015, we completed a securitization transaction in which ARLP 2015-1 issued $205.0 million in ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes with a weighted coupon
of approximately 4.01% and $60.0 million in ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes. ARLP 2015-1 is a Delaware statutory trust that is wholly owned by our operating
partnership with a federally chartered bank as its trustee. We retained $34.0 million of the ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes and all of the ARLP 2015-1 Class M
Notes. No interest will be paid on any ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes while any ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes remain outstanding. The ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes
and ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes are non-recourse to us and are secured solely by the NPLs and REO properties of ARLP 2015-1 but not by any of our other
assets. The assets of ARLP 2015-1 are the only source of repayment and interest on the ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes and the ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes, thereby
making the cash proceeds received by ARLP 2015-1 of loan payments, loan liquidations, loan sales and sales of converted REO properties the sole sources of the
payment of interest and principal by ARLP 2015-1 to the bond holders. The ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes and the ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes mature on May 25,
2055 and May 25, 2044, respectively, and we do not guarantee any of the obligations of ARLP
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2015-1 under the terms of the indenture governing the notes or otherwise. As of September 30, 2016 , the book value of the underlying securitized assets held by
ARLP 2015-1 was $267.0 million .
On November 25, 2014, we completed a securitization transaction in which ARLP 2014-2 issued $270.8 million in ARLP 2014-2 Class A Notes with a weighted
yield of approximately 3.85% and $234.0 million in ARLP 2014-2 Class M Notes. We repaid the notes issued under ARLP 2014-2 and terminated the
securitization in March 2016.
On September 25, 2014, we completed a securitization transaction in which ARLP 2014-1 issued $150.0 million in ARLP 2014-1 Class A Notes with a weighted
yield of approximately 3.47% and $32.0 million in ARLP 2014-1 Class M Notes with a weighted yield of 4.25% . We repaid the notes issued under ARLP 2014-1
and terminated the securitization in March 2016.
Following the repayment of the notes issued under the ARLP 2014-1 and 2014-2 securitizations during the first quarter of 2016, only the ARLP 2015-1
securitization remained in effect. The following table sets forth data with respect to these notes as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 ($ in thousands):
Interest Rate

Amount Outstanding

September 30, 2016
ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2015-1
ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due May 25, 2055 (1)

4.01%

ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due May 25, 2044

$

—%

191,950
60,000

Intercompany eliminations
Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(34,000)

Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due to ARLP

(60,000)

Less: deferred debt issuance costs

(964)
$

156,986

$

136,404

December 31, 2015
ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2014-1
ARLP 2014-1 Class A Notes (2)

3.47%

ARLP 2014-1 Class M Notes (2)

4.25%

32,000

ARLP 2014-2 Class A Notes (2)

3.63%

244,935

ARLP 2014-2 Class M Notes (2)

—%

234,010

4.01%

203,429

—%

60,000

ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2014-2

ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2015-1
ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due May 25, 2055 (1)
ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due May 25, 2044
Intercompany eliminations
Elimination of ARLP 2014-1 Class M Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(32,000)

Elimination of ARLP 2014-2 Class A Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(45,138)

Elimination of ARLP 2014-2 Class M Notes due to ARLP

(234,010)

Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(34,000)

Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due to ARLP

(60,000)

Less: deferred debt issuance costs

(3,031)
$

_____________
(1) The expected redemption date for the Class A Notes ranges from June 25, 2018 to June 25, 2019.
(2) Repaid during March 2016.
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7. Commitments and contingencies
Litigation, claims and assessments
From time to time, we may be involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Set forth below is a summary of legal
proceedings to which we are a party during 2016 :
Martin v. Altisource Residential Corporation et al.
On March 27, 2015, a putative shareholder class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court of the Virgin Islands by a purported shareholder of
the Company under the caption Martin v. Altisource Residential Corporation, et al. , 15-cv-00024. The action names as defendants the Company, Mr. Erbey and
certain officers and a former officer of the Company and alleges that the defendants violated federal securities laws by, among other things, making materially
false statements and/or failing to disclose material information to the Company's shareholders regarding the Company's relationship and transactions with AAMC,
Ocwen and Home Loan Servicing Solutions, Ltd. These alleged misstatements and omissions include allegations that the defendants failed to adequately disclose
the Company's reliance on Ocwen and the risks relating to its relationship with Ocwen, including that Ocwen was not properly servicing and selling loans, that
Ocwen was under investigation by regulators for violating state and federal laws regarding servicing of loans and Ocwen’s lack of proper internal controls. The
complaint also contains allegations that certain of the Company's disclosure documents were false and misleading because they failed to disclose fully the entire
details of a certain asset management agreement between the Company and AAMC that allegedly benefited AAMC to the detriment of the Company's
shareholders. The action seeks, among other things, an award of monetary damages to the putative class in an unspecified amount and an award of attorney’s and
other fees and expenses.
In May 2015, two of our purported shareholders filed competing motions with the court to be appointed lead plaintiff and for selection of lead counsel in the
action. Subsequently, opposition and reply briefs were filed by the purported shareholders with respect to these motions. On October 7, 2015, the court entered an
order granting the motion of Lei Shi to be lead plaintiff and denying the other motion to be lead plaintiff.
On January 23, 2016, the lead plaintiff filed an amended complaint.
On March 22, 2016, defendants filed a motion to dismiss all claims in the action. The plaintiffs filed opposition papers on May 20, 2016, and the defendants filed a
reply brief in support of the motion to dismiss the amended complaint on July 11, 2016.
We believe the complaint is without merit and intend to vigorously defend the action. At this time, we are not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter,
nor can we estimate the range of possible loss, if any.
Sokolowski v. Erbey, et al.
On December 24, 2014, a shareholder derivative action was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida by a purported shareholder
of Ocwen. The action named the directors of Ocwen as defendants and alleged, among other things, various breaches of fiduciary duties by the directors of Ocwen.
On February 11, 2015, plaintiff filed an amended complaint naming the directors of Ocwen as defendants and also naming the Company, AAMC, Altisource and
Home Loan Servicing Solutions, Ltd. as alleged aiders and abettors of the purported breaches of fiduciary duties. The amended complaint alleges that the directors
of Ocwen breached their fiduciary duties by, among other things, allegedly failing to exercise oversight over Ocwen’s compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations; failing to exercise oversight responsibilities with respect to the accounting and financial reporting processes of Ocwen; failing to prevent conflicts of
interest and allegedly improper related party transactions; failing to adhere to Ocwen’s code of conduct and corporate governance guidelines; selling personal
holdings of Ocwen stock on the basis of material adverse inside information; and disseminating allegedly false and misleading statements regarding Ocwen’s
compliance with regulatory obligations and allegedly self-dealing transactions with related companies. Plaintiff claims that as a result of the alleged breaches of
fiduciary duties, Ocwen has suffered damages, including settlements with regulatory agencies in excess of $2 billion , injury to its reputation and corporate
goodwill and exposure to governmental investigations and securities and consumer class action lawsuits. In addition to the derivative claims, the plaintiff also
alleges an individual claim that Ocwen’s 2014 proxy statement allegedly contained untrue statements of material fact and failed to disclose material information in
violation of federal securities laws. The plaintiff seeks, among other things, an order requiring the defendants to repay to Ocwen unspecified amounts by which
Ocwen has been damaged or will be damaged, an award of an unspecified amount of exemplary damages, changes to Ocwen's corporate governance and an award
of attorneys’ and other fees and expenses.
On April 13, 2015, nominal defendant Ocwen and defendants Mr. Erbey and Mr. Faris filed a motion to stay the action.
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On July 16, 2015, we filed a motion to dismiss all claims against us in the action, based upon, among other arguments, lack of personal jurisdiction and failure to
state a claim. Co-defendant AAMC filed a similar motion to dismiss the complaint as to all claims asserted against it.
On December 8, 2015, the court granted AAMC’s and our motions to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction with leave to amend the jurisdiction allegations no
later than January 4, 2016.
On December 15, 2015, Hutt v. Erbey, et al. , Case No. 15-cv-81709-WPD, was transferred to the Southern District of Florida from the Northern District of
Georgia. That same day, a third related derivative action, Lowinger v. Erbey, et al. , Case No. 15-cv-62628-WPD, was also filed in the Southern District of Florida.
The court then requested that the parties file a response stating their positions as to whether the actions should be consolidated. On December 29, 2015, we filed a
response stating that we took no position on the issue of consolidation, so long as our defenses were fully reserved should plaintiff Sokolowski seek to file an
amended complaint. Neither plaintiff Sokolowski nor plaintiff Hutt opposed consolidation in their responses. On December 30, 2015, the court issued an order that,
among other things, extended the deadline for plaintiff Sokolowski to file its amended complaint to cure the jurisdictional defects as to AAMC and us until January
13, 2016. On January 8, 2016, the court issued an order consolidating the three related actions.
On February 2, 2016, Plaintiffs Sokolowski and Lowinger filed competing motions for appointment of lead counsel in the consolidated action. These motions were
fully briefed on February 5, 2016. Subsequently, on February 17, 2016, the court issued an order appointing Sokolowski’s counsel as lead counsel with Lowinger’s
and Hutt’s counsel serving on the executive committee of the plaintiffs. It also ordered that a consolidated complaint in the matter shall be filed no later than March
8, 2016.
On March 8, 2016, the plaintiffs filed a consolidated certified shareholder derivative complaint (the “Consolidated Complaint”) in the action. On March 11, the
Special Litigation Committee of Ocwen sought additional time beyond the March 31, 2016 originally anticipated completion date to analyze the Consolidated
Complaint. On March 22, 2016, the parties filed a joint consent motion for entry of an order amending the briefing schedule regarding the Consolidated Complaint.
On March 23, 2016, the court entered a scheduling order requiring defendants to file their motions to dismiss on or before May 13, 2016, plaintiffs to file a
response to any such motion on or before June 17, 2016 and defendants to file any reply briefs on or before July 15, 2016.
On May 13, 2016, we filed a motion to dismiss the Sokolowski action as to us. Subsequently, plaintiffs sought and received an extension to file their opposition to
the defendants' motions to dismiss to August 19, 2016, and a further extension to September 29, 2016.
On September 13, 2016, plaintiffs, Ocwen, Mr. Erbey, Mr. Faris, and Mr. Britti requested that the court transfer the case to Magistrate Judge Snow in order to
assist with settlement negotiations. The court granted the request, and counsel for plaintiffs and Ocwen appeared before Magistrate Judge Snow on October 13,
2016 for a settlement conference. At the conference, plaintiffs and Ocwen reached an agreement in principle to resolve certain claims, which Ocwen has publicly
disclosed it believes will be covered in full by its applicable insurance coverage. Based on our understanding of the settlement terms, we believe the settlement
agreement will include our release from any and all liability in the matter. Plaintiffs filed a Settlement Term Sheet under seal on October 18, 2016. The Stipulation
of Settlement is due on or before November 18, 2016. A Final Approval Hearing will be held on January 18, 2017.
We believe the complaint against us is without merit. At this time, until the settlement agreement is finalized and approved, we are not able to predict the ultimate
outcome of this matter, nor can we estimate the range of possible loss, if any.
Moncavage v. Faris, et al.
In March, 2015, a shareholder derivative action was filed in the Circuit Court for the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida by a
purported shareholder of Ocwen under the caption Moncavage v. Ronald Faris, et al. , Case No. 2015-CA-03244 (MB-AD). The action named certain officers and
directors of Ocwen as defendants and alleged, among other things, various breaches of fiduciary duties by these individual defendants. The action also named
Altisource, Home Loan Servicing Solutions, Ltd. and us as alleged aiders and abettors of the purported breaches of fiduciary duties. The allegations of wrongdoing
contained in the Moncavage action are similar to the allegations in the Sokolowski action updated above. On July 13, 2015, the plaintiff and we jointly filed a
stipulation of an extension of time to respond to the pending motions to stay the action that had been filed by Ocwen and the individual defendants. On November
9, 2015, the court granted Ocwen’s motion to stay the action in its entirety for a period of 180 days .
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We believe the claims against us in the matter are without merit. At this time, we are not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter, nor can we estimate
the range of possible loss, if any.
Management does not believe that we have incurred an estimable, probable or material loss by reason of any of the above actions.
Amendment and Waiver Agreement with Altisource Solutions
In connection with the HOME SFR Transaction and to enable Main Street Renewal LLC (“MSR”) to be property manager for the acquired properties, we and
Altisource Solutions S.à r.l. (“Altisource Solutions”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. (“ASPS”), entered into an Amendment and
Waiver Agreement (the “Amendment and Waiver Agreement”) to amend the Master Services Agreement (the “MSA”) between Altisource Solutions and us, dated
December 21, 2012, under which Altisource Solutions is the exclusive provider of leasing and property management services to the us. Pursuant to the Amendment
and Waiver Agreement, we obtained a waiver of the exclusivity requirements under the MSA for the acquired properties. Additionally, the Amendment and
Waiver Agreement permits us to utilize the property management services of MSR in connection with up to approximately 3,000 additional properties if we
acquire such additional properties from an investment fund or other entity affiliated with Amherst in one or more transactions prior to June 30, 2017. The
Amendment and Waiver Agreement also amended the MSA to require us or any surviving entity to pay a $60 million liquidation fee to Altisource Solutions if (i)
we sell, liquidate or dispose of 50% or more of our SFR portfolio managed by Altisource Solutions over a rolling eighteen ( 18 ) month period without using the
proceeds of such sales, liquidations or disposals to purchase additional SFR assets or if (ii) the surviving entity in a change of control does not assume the MSA
with Altisource Solutions as property manager. The liquidation fee will not be required to be paid if we or any surviving entity terminate the MSA as a result of a
material breach of the MSA by Altisource Solutions, for Altisource Solutions’ failure to meet certain specified performance standards or for certain other
customary reasons.
8. Related-party transactions
New asset management agreement with AAMC
On March 31, 2015, we entered into a new asset management agreement (the “New AMA”) with AAMC. The New AMA, which became effective on April 1,
2015, provides for a new management fee structure, which replaces the incentive fee structure under the original asset management agreement (the “Original
AMA”) as follows:
•

Base Management Fee . AAMC is entitled to a quarterly Base Management Fee equal to 1.5% of the product of (i) our average invested capital (as
defined in the New AMA) for the quarter multiplied by (ii) 0.25 , while we have fewer than 2,500 single family rental properties actually rented (“Rental
Properties”). The Base Management Fee percentage increases to 1.75% of invested capital while we have between 2,500 and 4,499 Rental Properties and
increases to 2.0% of invested capital while we have 4,500 or more Rental Properties;

•

Incentive Management Fee . AAMC is entitled to a quarterly Incentive Management Fee equal to 20% of the amount by which our return on invested
capital (based on AFFO defined as our net income attributable to holders of common stock calculated in accordance with GAAP plus real estate
depreciation expense minus recurring capital expenditures on all of our real estate assets owned) exceeds an annual hurdle return rate of between 7.0%
and 8.25% (depending on the 10 -year treasury rate). The Incentive Management Fee increases to 22.5% while we have between 2,500 and 4,499 Rental
Properties and increases to 25% while we have 4,500 or more Rental Properties; and

•

Conversion Fee . AAMC is entitled to a quarterly conversion fee equal to 1.5% of the market value of the single-family homes leased by us for the first
time during the quarter.

We have the flexibility to pay up to 25% of the Incentive Management Fee to AAMC in shares of our common stock.
Under the New AMA, AAMC will continue to serve as our exclusive asset manager for an initial term of 15 years from April 1, 2015, with two potential five -year
extensions, subject to our achieving an average annual return on invested capital of at least 7.0% . Under the New AMA, we will not be required to reimburse
AAMC for the allocable compensation and routine overhead expenses of its employees and staff, which will now be covered by the Base Management Fee
described above. Only the compensation and benefits of the general counsel dedicated to us and certain other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by AAMC on our
behalf will be reimbursed.
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Neither party is entitled to terminate the New AMA prior to the end of the initial term, or each renewal term, other than termination by (a) us and/or AAMC “for
cause” for certain events such as a material breach of the New AMA and failure to cure such breach, (b) us for certain other reasons such as our failure to achieve a
return on invested capital of at least 7.0% for two consecutive fiscal years after the third anniversary of the New AMA and (c) us in connection with certain change
of control events.
Summary of related-party transactions
The following table presents our significant transactions with AAMC, which is a related party, for the periods indicated ($ in thousands):
Three months ended
September 30, 2016
Base management fees (1)
Conversion fees (1)
Management incentive fees (1) (2)

$

4,208

Three months ended
September 30, 2015
$

4,659

450

329

Nine months ended
September 30, 2016
$

12,838

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015
$

9,411

1,396

728

—

—

—

14,900

196

—

553

750

Dividend income (4)

—

1,518

—

1,518

Interest expense (5)

—

242

—

563

Expense reimbursements (3)

Professional fee sharing for negotiation of New
—
—
—
2,000
AMA
______________
(1) Included in management fees in the consolidated statements of operations.
(2) Pursuant to the terms of the New AMA, the management incentive fees for the first quarter of 2015 were recalculated during the fourth quarter of 2015, and it
was determined that $6.9 million was reimbursable by AAMC to us.
(3) Included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
(4) On October 17, 2013, we invested $18.0 million in the non-voting preferred stock of NewSource Reinsurance Company Ltd. (“NewSource”), an insurance and
reinsurance company focused on real estate related insurance products in Bermuda and a wholly owned subsidiary of AAMC. On September 14, 2015,
NewSource completed the repurchase of all of our shares of non-voting preferred stock for aggregate proceeds of $18.0 million , which was the aggregate par
value of the shares being repurchased plus the payment of all accrued and unpaid cumulative dividends on such shares of preferred stock in the amount of $1.5
million .
(5) Interest expense related to ARLP 2014-1 Class M Notes issued to NewSource. These Class M Notes were repurchased on September 14, 2015.
No Incentive Management Fee under the New AMA was payable to AAMC during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 because our return on
invested capital (as defined in the New AMA) for the six quarters covered by the New AMA was below the required hurdle rate. Under the New AMA, to the
extent we have an aggregate shortfall in our return rate over the previous seven quarters, that aggregate return rate shortfall gets added to the normal quarterly
1.75% return hurdle for the next quarter before AAMC is entitled to an Incentive Management Fee. As of September 30, 2016 , the aggregate return shortfall from
the prior six quarters under the New AMA was approximately 36.66% of invested capital. Therefore, we must achieve a 38.41% return on invested capital in the
fourth quarter of 2016 before any Incentive Management Fee will be payable to AAMC. In future quarters, return on invested capital must exceed the required
hurdle for the current quarter plus any carried-forward cumulative additional hurdle shortfall from the prior seven quarters before any Incentive Management Fee
will be payable to AAMC.
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9. Share-based payments
The Altisource Residential Corporation 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2016 Equity Incentive Plan”) was approved at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on
June 1, 2016.
Beginning in July 2016, our non-management directors each will receive annual grants of restricted stock units issued under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan. These
restricted stock units are eligible for settlement in the number of shares of our common stock having a fair market value of $60 thousand on the date of grant. The
restricted stock units are expected to vest on the earlier of the first anniversary of the date of grant or the next annual meeting of stockholders, with distribution
mandatorily deferred for an additional 2 years thereafter until the third anniversary of grant (subject to earlier distribution or forfeiture upon the applicable
director’s separation from the Board of Directors). The awards will be issued together with dividend equivalent rights. In respect of dividends paid to our
stockholders prior to the vesting date, dividend equivalent rights are expected to accumulate and be paid in a lump sum in cash following the vesting date,
contingent on the vesting of the underlying award. During any period thereafter when the award is vested but remains subject to settlement, dividend equivalent
rights are expected to be paid in cash on the same timeline as underlying dividends are actually paid to our stockholders.
The first annual grant of restricted stock units was made to our non-management directors on July 11, 2016 with respect to the 2016 to 2017 service year in an
aggregate number of 26,520 shares of restricted stock with a weighted average grant date fair value of $9.05 per share.
On August 9, 2016, an aggregate of 247,008 shares of restricted stock and 695,187 stock options were granted to certain employees of AAMC pursuant to the 2016
Equity Incentive Plan. The restricted stock and stock options had a weighted average grant date fair value of $10.04 per share and $1.91 per share, respectively.
The restricted stock will vest in equal annual installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date, subject to acceleration or forfeiture. The stock
options will vest in three equal annual installments on the later of the anniversary of the option award and the date of the satisfaction of certain performance
criteria, in each case, on the first, second and third anniversaries of the option award, subject to acceleration or forfeiture. The performance criteria is satisfied on
the date on which the sum of (a) the average price per share for the consecutive 20 -trading-day period ending on such date plus (b) the amount of all reinvested
dividends, calculated on a per-share basis from the date of grant through such date, shall equal or exceed 125% of the price per share on the date of grant (the
“Performance Goal”); provided however that the Performance Goal must be attained no later than the fourth anniversary of the grant date. In the event that the
Performance Goal is not attained prior to the fourth anniversary of the grant date, the stock options shall expire.
In addition to the above-described grants under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan, during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and pursuant to the 2013
Director Equity Plan, an aggregate of 1,232 shares of restricted stock were granted to a director who joined the Board on March 1, 2016 with a weighted average
grant date fair value of $9.30 per share, and a former director forfeited 625 shares of restricted stock with a weighted average grant date fair value of $18.25 per
share due to his departure from the Board on March 1, 2016. During the nine months ended September 30, 2015 , our directors were granted 9,924 shares of
restricted stock with a weighted average grant date fair value of $18.25 per share.
On December 21, 2012, as part of our separation transaction from ASPS, we issued stock options under the 2012 Conversion Option Plan and 2012 Special
Conversion Option Plan to holders of ASPS stock options to purchase shares of our common stock in a ratio of one share of our common stock to every three
shares of ASPS common stock. As of September 30, 2016 , options to purchase an aggregate of 194,078 shares of our common stock were remaining under the
Conversion Option Plan and Special Conversion Option Plan.
We recorded $419 thousand and $493 thousand of compensation expense related to our share-based compensation programs for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2016 , respectively. As of September 30, 2016 and 2015 , we had $3.8 million and $0.1 million , respectively, of unrecognized share-based
compensation cost remaining with an average remaining estimated term of 1.8 years and 0.7 years , respectively.
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10. Derivatives
We may enter into derivative contracts from time to time in order to mitigate the risk associated with our variable rate debt. We do not enter into derivatives for
investment purposes. Derivatives are carried at fair value within prepaid expenses and other assets in our consolidated balance sheet. Upon execution, we may or
may not designate such derivatives as accounting hedges.
On September 29, 2016, we entered into an interest rate cap to manage the economic risk of increases in the floating rate portion of the Original MSR loan
agreement. The interest rate cap has a strike rate on the one-month LIBOR of 2.938% , a notional amount of $489.3 million and a termination date of November
15, 2018. At September 30, 2016, the interest rate cap had a fair value of $55 thousand . We did not designate the interest rate cap as an accounting hedge;
therefore, changes in the fair value of the interest rate cap are recorded in other income or expense in our consolidated statement of operations. For the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we recognized no changes in the fair value of the interest rate cap.
11. Income taxes
As a REIT, we must meet certain organizational and operational requirements, including the requirement to distribute at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable
income, excluding capital gains, to our stockholders. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent we distribute our REIT taxable
income to our stockholders and provided we satisfy the REIT requirements, including certain asset, income, distribution and stock ownership tests. If we fail to
qualify as a REIT, and do not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, we will be subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes and may be precluded
from qualifying as a REIT for the subsequent four taxable years following the year in which we lost our REIT qualification.
Based on our estimated 2015 taxable income of $107.6 million , which consisted entirely of net capital gains, the aggregate minimum distribution to stockholders
required to maintain our REIT status has been met for 2015 . Dividends declared per share of common stock aggregated $1.83 for the year ended December 31,
2015 , or $103.9 million . These distributions included a cash dividend paid on March 30, 2015 of $0.08 per share of common stock, or $4.6 million , which was
intended to satisfy the requirement that a REIT must distribute at least 90% of its annual REIT taxable income to its stockholders and was treated as a 2014
distribution for REIT qualification purposes. The remaining taxable income with respect to 2015 was distributed through a dividend of $0.15 per share declared on
February 28, 2016 and paid on March 17, 2016.
Our consolidated financial statements include the operations of our taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”), which is subject to federal, state and local income taxes on
its taxable income. From inception through September 30, 2016 , the TRS operated at a cumulative taxable loss, which resulted in our recording a deferred tax
asset with a corresponding valuation allowance.
We recorded state income tax expense on our consolidated operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 . As a REIT, we may also
be subject to federal taxes if we engage in certain types of transactions.
As of September 30, 2016 and 2015 , we did not accrue interest or penalties associated with any unrecognized tax benefits. We recorded nominal state and local tax
expense along with nominal penalties and interest on income and property for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 . Our subsidiaries and
we remain subject to tax examination for the period from inception to December 31, 2015 .
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12. Earnings per share
The following table sets forth the components of diluted (loss) earnings per share (in thousands, except share and per share amounts):
Three months ended
September 30, 2016

Three months ended
September 30, 2015

Nine months ended
September 30, 2016

$

$

$

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015

Numerator
Net (loss) income

(57,638)

(5,363)

(166,824)

$

20,153

Denominator
Weighted average common stock outstanding – basic

54,178,129

57,056,625

54,722,828

57,154,734

Stock options using the treasury method

—

—

—

192,870

Restricted stock

—

—

—

3,410

54,178,129

57,056,625

54,722,828

57,351,014

Weighted average common stock outstanding – diluted
(Loss) earnings per basic common share

$

(1.06)

$

(0.09)

$

(3.05)

$

0.35

(Loss) earnings per diluted common share

$

(1.06)

$

(0.09)

$

(3.05)

$

0.35

We excluded the items presented below from the calculation of diluted earnings per share as they were antidilutive for the periods indicated:
Three months ended
September 30, 2016

Three months ended
September 30, 2015

Nine months ended
September 30, 2016

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015

Denominator (in weighted-average shares)
Stock options
Restricted stock

151,755

215,773

154,828

—

35,671

9,924

15,545

—

Effective April 1, 2015, we have the flexibility to pay up to 25% of the Incentive Management Fee to AAMC in shares of our common stock. Should we choose to
do so, our earnings available to common stockholders would be diluted to the extent of such issuance. Because AAMC did not earn any Incentive Management
Fees, no dilutive effect was recognized for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 .
13. Segment information
Our primary business is the acquisition and ownership of single-family rental assets. Our primary sourcing strategy is to acquire these assets by purchasing singlefamily rental properties, either on an individual basis or in pools, or by the acquisition and resolution of NPLs. As a result, we operate in a single segment focused
on the acquisition and ownership of rental residential properties.
14. Subsequent events
Management has evaluated the impact of all events subsequent to September 30, 2016 and through the issuance of these consolidated interim financial statements.
We have determined that there were no subsequent events requiring adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Our Company
We are a Maryland real estate investment trust (“REIT”) focused on acquiring, owning and managing single-family rental (“SFR”) properties throughout the
United States. We conduct substantially all of our activities through our wholly owned subsidiary, Altisource Residential, L.P. (“ARLP”), and its subsidiaries. We
conduct an SFR business, and we employ a diversified SFR property acquisition strategy in order to pursue our objective of becoming one of the top single-family
REITs serving working class American families and their communities with a view to providing robust returns on equity and long-term growth for our investors. In
2015, we expanded our acquisition strategy to opportunistically acquire portfolios of SFR properties in order to more quickly achieve scale in our rental portfolio.
We also purchase SFR properties on a one-by-one basis, sourcing listed properties from the Multiple Listing Service and alternative listing sources. As a result of
this expansion of our acquisition strategy, we have increased the size of our rental portfolio from 2,732 as of December 31, 2015 to 8,541 as of September 30, 2016
.
Initially, our preferred acquisition strategy involved acquiring portfolios of sub-performing and non-performing mortgage loans (“NPLs”). However, as market
conditions evolved and the acquisition of NPL pools became more competitive and higher-priced, we introduced the alternative SFR property acquisition strategies
described above, and we began opportunistically selling portfolios of NPLs.
We are managed by Altisource Asset Management Corporation (“AAMC” or our “Manager”), which we rely on to provide us with dedicated personnel to
administer our business and perform certain of our corporate governance functions. AAMC also provides portfolio management services in connection with our
acquisition and management of SFR properties and the ongoing management of our residential mortgage loans and real estate owned (“REO”) properties.
Management Overview
During 2016, we have focused on the direct acquisition of SFR properties as we transition to a 100% SFR REIT, and we continue to successfully execute that
strategy. On September 30, 2016, we completed a transformative acquisition of 4,262 high-yielding SFR properties (the “HOME SFR Transaction”) for an
aggregate purchase price of $652.3 million in two separate seller financed transactions. The properties were acquired from investment funds sponsored by Amherst
Holdings, LLC (“Amherst”). The HOME SFR Transaction brings our total rental portfolio to 8,541 properties at September 30, 2016 and enhances our presence in
new and existing strategic target markets, including Florida, Texas, Georgia, Tennessee, North Carolina and South Carolina. The HOME SFR Transaction is a
significant step towards completing our transition to a 100% SFR REIT.
In connection with the HOME SFR Transaction, our subsidiary that owns the properties, HOME SFR Borrower, LLC (“HOME Borrower”), borrowed
approximately $489.3 million, representing 75% of the aggregate purchase price. This loan was made pursuant to a loan agreement with an ultimate maturity date
of up to November 30, 2021 and a floating interest rate of one-month LIBOR plus a fixed spread. We believe that the terms of the loan were attractive in
comparison to the financing terms otherwise available to us and will satisfy our financing requirements for the 4,262 SFR properties acquired for the foreseeable
future. For additional information on this loan and the related loan agreement, please see “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
In connection with the seller financing, we retained the current property manager for the portfolio, Main Street Renewal LLC (“MSR”), to provide property
management services including, leasing and lease management, operations, maintenance, repair, property management and property disposition services to us with
respect to the properties acquired in the HOME SFR Transaction. This new property management agreement expands our property manager structure from the sole
agreement already in place with Altisource Solutions S.à r.l. (“Altisource Solutions”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. (“ASPS”).
We believe that the property management agreements with MSR and Altisource Solutions are, and will be, key drivers of efficiency and cost management in our
model and provide us with scalable, established, geographically dispersed property management infrastructures to support our portfolios of SFR properties.
Importantly, our external property management structure allows us to achieve scale in our SFR portfolio without incurring the substantial costs of developing our
own nationwide property management infrastructure.
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In addition to the HOME SFR Transaction, during the third quarter of 2016, we continued our efforts to sell certain mortgage loans to take advantage of attractive
market pricing. We have successfully completed the sale of 1,974 NPLs for the nine months ended September 30, 2016, and we expect to agree the sale of two
additional portfolios of mortgage loans in the fourth quarter of 2016 and to close these anticipated sales in the first quarter of 2017. In addition, we have continued
to make significant progress on the sale of non-rental REO properties with 604 properties sold during the third quarter to bring the total REO properties sold in
2016 to 2,200 . We expect that mortgage loan and non-rental REO property sales will allow us to recycle capital to purchase pools of stabilized rental homes at
attractive yields, to repurchase common stock or to utilize the proceeds for such other purposes as we may determine.
We believe the foregoing developments are critical to our strategy of building long-term stockholder value through the creation of a large portfolio of SFR homes
that we target operating at a best-in-class yield.
Portfolio Overview
Real Estate Assets
As of September 30, 2016 , we owned 10,731 REO properties with an aggregate carrying value of $1.6 billion , of which 9,892 were held for use and 839 were
held for sale. Of the 9,892 REO properties held for use, 7,079 properties had been leased, 587 were listed and ready for rent and 875 were in varying stages of
renovation and unit turn status. With respect to the remaining 1,351 REO properties held for use, we will make a final determination whether each property meets
our rental profile after (a) applicable state redemption periods have expired, (b) the foreclosure sale has been ratified, (c) we have recorded the deed for the
property, (d) utilities have been activated and (e) we have secured access for interior inspection.
As of December 31, 2015, we owned 6,516 REO properties with an aggregate carrying value of $986.4 million, of which 4,933 were held for use and 1,583 were
held for sale. Of the 4,933 REO properties held for use, 2,118 properties had been leased, 264 were listed and ready for rent and 350 were in varying stages of
renovation and unit turn status. With respect to the remaining 2,201 REO properties, we were in the process of determining whether these properties would meet
our rental profile.
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The following table sets forth a summary of our total real estate portfolio as of September 30, 2016 ($ in thousands):
State / District

Carrying
Value (1) (2)

Number of Properties

Alabama

45

Arizona

58

$

Weighted Average Age in
Years (3)
6,481

20.1

15,436

22.5

Arkansas

31

2,938

32.2

California

304

105,240

39.3

Colorado

26

6,049

32.4

Connecticut

52

9,497

56.7

Delaware

21

3,900

36.3

1

650

111.0

Florida

1,299

194,865

28.3

Georgia

2,811

297,512

32.9

Dist. of Columbia

Hawaii

3

622

37.0

Idaho

8

1,175

33.8

Illinois

327

57,412

48.0

Indiana

519

70,203

21.0

7

563

53.8

Kansas

21

2,776

40.3

Kentucky

41

5,617

28.6

Louisiana

12

1,474

35.7

Iowa

Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts

4

517

34.3

336

66,895

36.1

67

15,343

77.6

Michigan

53

7,887

41.6

Minnesota

107

17,621

65.7

Mississippi

89

13,904

17.0

Missouri

94

14,084

24.2

Montana

1

121

25.0

Nebraska

2

249

73.5

27

4,603

21.8

4

566

99.3

New Jersey

150

23,600

64.1

New Mexico

51

6,052

27.3

New York

70

13,153

69.1

582

73,557

21.0

60

7,750

34.5

187

30,736

25.0

28

6,314

38.2

139

18,838

60.0

Nevada
New Hampshire

North Carolina
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
31

55

7,040

78.5

103

13,088

23.2

1

95

36.0

988

152,464

19.7

1,722

253,499

26.0
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Vermont

5

731

104.8

Virginia

61

16,756

30.6

Washington

89

18,736

42.5

2

288

14.0

39

4,405

50.2

10,731

1,576,276

31.9

West Virginia
Wisconsin
Total

_____________
(1) The carrying value of an asset is based on historical cost, which generally consists of the market value at the time of acquisition plus renovation costs, net of
any accumulated depreciation and impairment. Assets held for sale are carried at the lower of the carrying amount or estimated fair value less costs to sell.
(2) The carrying value of properties acquired in the HOME SFR Transaction are included based upon the preliminary allocation of purchase price. Carrying
values for these properties are subject to change during the evaluation period.
(3) Weighted average age is based on the age of each property weighted by its proportion of the total carrying value for its respective state.
The following table presents the status of our real estate held for use as of the dates indicated:
September 30, 2016
Leased
Listed and ready for rent
Renovation or unit turn
Other (1)

December 31, 2015

7,079

2,118

587

264

875

350

1,351

2,201

9,892

4,933

_____________
(1) Consists of properties with a status of evaluating strategy.
Real Estate Acquisitions
On September 30, 2016, we acquired a portfolio of 4,262 single-family residential properties located in 14 states for an aggregate purchase price of $652.3 million
in two separate seller-financed transactions. The properties were acquired from two separate investment funds sponsored by Amherst, neither of which is a related
party to us. In the first transaction, ARLP acquired 3,868 of the 4,262 properties through our entry into a Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement (the
“MIPA”) with MSR I, L.P. (“MSR I”). Pursuant to the MIPA, ARLP acquired from MSR I 100% of the membership interests of HOME SFR Equity Owner, LLC
(“HOME Equity”), a newly formed special purpose entity and sole equity owner of HOME Borrower, which owned such 3,868 single-family residential properties.
Following the consummation of the transaction, HOME Equity and HOME Borrower became indirect, wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. In the second
transaction, ALRP entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “PSA”) with Firebird SFE I, LLC. Pursuant to the PSA, HOME Borrower, as assignee from
ARLP, acquired the remaining 394 of the 4,262 properties.
On March 30, 2016, we completed our acquisition of 590 single-family residential properties in five states from an unrelated third party for an aggregate purchase
price of approximately $64.8 million .
On August 18, 2015, we completed our acquisition of 1,314 single-family rental properties in the Atlanta, Georgia market from an unrelated third party for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $111.4 million .
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we acquired 238 and 642 residential properties, respectively, under our one-by-one acquisition
program. The aggregate purchase price attributable to these acquired properties was $24.6 million and $64.7 million , respectively.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , we acquired 10 residential properties under our one-by-one acquisition program for an aggregate
purchase price of $1.1 million .
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Real Estate Dispositions
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we sold 604 and 2,200 residential properties, respectively, and recorded $26.3 million and $94.8
million , respectively, of net realized gains on real estate.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, we sold 357 and 932 residential properties, respectively, and recorded $13.9 million and $36.9
million , respectively, of net realized gains on real estate.
The following table summarizes changes in our real estate assets for the periods indicated:
First
Quarter
2015

Second
Quarter
2015

Third
Quarter
2015

Nine months
ended
September 30,
2015

First
Quarter
2016

Second
Quarter
2016

Third
Quarter
2016

Nine months
ended
September 30,
2016

Real Estate Assets
Beginning

3,960

4,430

4,796

3,960

6,516

6,895

6,588

6,516

Acquisitions

—

—

1,324

1,324

703

291

4,500

5,494

Dispositions

(254)

(321)

(357)

(686)

(910)

(604)

724

687

507

1,918

360

308

246

914

—

—

—

—

2

4

1

7

4,430

4,796

6,270

6,270

6,895

6,588

10,731

10,731

Mortgage loan conversions to REO, net
(1) (2)
Other additions
Ending

(932)

(2,200)

_____________
(1) Subsequent to the foreclosure sale, we may be notified that the foreclosure sale was invalidated for certain reasons.
(2) During the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, conversions to REO included 36 and 2 properties, respectively, that were previously in our
mortgage loans held for sale.
Mortgage Loan Assets
As of September 30, 2016 , our portfolio of mortgage loans at fair value consisted of 3,717 loans, substantially all of which were non-performing, having an
aggregate UPB of approximately $0.9 billion and an aggregate market value of underlying properties of $0.9 billion . We also owned 31 mortgage loans held for
sale having an aggregate UPB of approximately $6.0 million and an aggregate market value of underlying properties of approximately $7.4 million as of
September 30, 2016 .
As of December 31, 2015, our portfolio of mortgage loans at fair value consisted of 5,739 loans, substantially all of which were non-performing, having an
aggregate UPB of approximately $1.4 billion and an aggregate market value of underlying properties of $1.3 billion . We also owned 1,297 mortgage loans held
for sale having an aggregate UPB of approximately $440.4 million and an aggregate market value of underlying properties of approximately $465.0 million as of
December 31, 2015.
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The table below provides a summary of our mortgage loans at fair value as of September 30, 2016 ($ in thousands):
Location

Loan Count

Carrying Value

Alabama

20

Arizona

21

$

Market Value of
Underlying Properties (1)

UPB

1,714
2,699

$

2,656
3,457

$

2,364
3,766

Arkansas

15

824

1,324

1,237

California

268

106,465

122,383

159,030

Colorado

15

2,255

2,424

3,543

Connecticut

55

11,971

16,922

17,036

Delaware

26

2,723

4,228

4,090

Dist. of Columbia

33

4,478

6,143

7,228

Florida

714

103,312

155,578

155,105

Georgia

107

11,681

15,569

16,392

Hawaii

20

7,261

9,522

10,585

3

356

391

445

Illinois

123

16,458

25,318

23,789

Indiana

Idaho

106

9,434

13,363

13,261

Iowa

4

157

180

306

Kansas

4

173

270

461

Kentucky

25

1,855

3,117

2,771

Louisiana

15

1,634

2,137

2,446

Maine

13

1,124

2,182

1,873

Maryland

213

32,706

49,990

48,362

Massachusetts

127

22,994

31,543

35,255

Michigan

17

1,788

2,202

2,861

Minnesota

16

3,246

3,799

4,560

Mississippi

11

1,050

1,513

1,472

Missouri

30

1,835

2,637

2,773

Montana

1

177

252

250

Nebraska

2

142

219

198

78

14,285

24,619

20,706

4

899

1,139

1,248

New Jersey

424

61,596

112,294

93,401

New Mexico

61

5,908

7,888

8,370

420

94,925

128,249

143,135

North Carolina

52

5,471

7,059

7,907

North Dakota

1

97

123

143

Ohio

36

2,870

4,441

4,673

Oklahoma

13

1,712

2,375

2,428

Oregon

34

7,861

10,115

11,350

Pennsylvania

98

10,212

15,746

15,458

Puerto Rico

1

96

189

175

Rhode Island

19

2,263

3,874

3,337

South Carolina

72

7,449

10,088

10,472

Tennessee

30

4,319

4,984

6,247

Texas

177

20,537

21,483

31,882

Utah

12

2,853

3,152

3,887

Vermont

2

243

290

367

Virginia

21

4,701

5,956

6,347

Nevada
New Hampshire

New York
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Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin

132

27,470

31,894

38,154

1

46

126

85

25
3,717

Total mortgage loans at fair value

1,979
$

628,304

3,200
$

878,603

3,032
$

934,263

_____________
(1) Market value is based on the most recent broker price opinion (“BPO”) for each property.
Mortgage Loan Resolutions and Dispositions
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we resolved 109 and 400 mortgage loans, respectively, primarily through short sales, refinancing
and foreclosure sales. In connection with these resolutions, we recorded $9.4 million and $30.3 million , respectively, of net realized gains on mortgage loans.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, we resolved 145 and 565 mortgage loans, respectively, primarily through short sales, refinancing and
foreclosure sales. In addition, we sold 137 loans that had transitioned to re-performing status from prior non-performing loan acquisitions to a third party purchaser
during June 2015. In connection with these resolutions, we recorded $12.9 million and $47.5 million, respectively, of net realized gains on mortgage loans.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2016 , we sold 1,974 of our mortgage loans held for sale to third party purchasers. In connection with this sale, we
recorded $50.2 million of net realized gains on mortgage loans held for sale.
During June 2015, we sold 52 loans from the re-performing mortgage loans purchased in June 2014 to a third party purchaser. In connection with this sale, we
recognized $0.3 million of net realized gains on mortgage loans held for sale.
From inception through September 30, 2016 , we converted an aggregate of 7,265 mortgage loans at fair value and 22 mortgage loans held for sale into REO
properties and resolved an aggregate of 2,073 mortgage loans at fair value and 22 mortgage loans held for sale through short sale, refinancing or other liquidation
events.
As market conditions in the NPL industry have continued to develop, we have sold some NPLs that we expect will not be rented by us, and we continue to consider
offering further portions of our NPL portfolio for sale to eligible purchasers. We believe that such potential sales have and will continue to enable us to recycle our
assets to provide us with more liquidity and buying power. As such, we view our portfolio of NPLs as a potential growth engine for our business to purchase
single-family rental assets, which we believe provides us with an advantage, particularly at times when it is challenging to access equity markets.
The following table summarizes changes in our mortgage loans at fair value for the periods indicated:
First
Quarter
2015

Second
Quarter
2015

Third
Quarter
2015

Nine months
ended
September 30,
2015

First
Quarter
2016

Second
Quarter
2016

Third
Quarter
2016

Nine months
ended
September 30,
2016

10,963

10,089

9,134

10,963

5,739

5,397

4,072

5,739

Mortgage Loans at Fair Value (1)
Beginning
Resolutions

(150)

(270)

(145)

(565)

Transferred to held for sale

—

—

(871)

(871)

Reversion from held for sale

—

2

—

Mortgage loan conversions to REO,
net (2)
Ending

(724)
10,089

(687)
9,134

2

(507)

(1,918)

7,611

7,611

(169)

(122)

(109)

(400)

—

(895)

—

(895)

187

—

—

187

(360)

(308)

(246)

(914)

5,397

_____________
(1) Excludes mortgage loans held for sale.
(2) Subsequent to the foreclosure sale, we may be notified that the foreclosure sale was invalidated for certain reasons.
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Metrics Affecting Our Results
Revenues
Our revenues primarily consist of the following:
i. Rental revenues. Minimum contractual rents from leases are recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases in residential rental revenues.
Therefore, actual amounts billed in accordance with the lease during any given period may be higher or lower than the amount of rental revenue
recognized for the period. As we acquire more single-family rental properties in bulk and on a one-by-one basis and as we renovate and deem suitable for
rent a greater number of our REO properties, we expect a greater portion of our revenues will be rental revenues. We believe the key variables that will
affect our rental revenues over the long term will be average occupancy levels and rental rates.
ii. Net realized gain (loss) on mortgage loans. We record net realized gains or losses, including the reclassification of previously accumulated net unrealized
gains, upon the liquidation of a loan, which may consist of short sale, third party sale of the underlying property, refinancing or full debt pay-off of the
loan. We expect the timeline to liquidate loans will vary significantly by loan, which could result in fluctuations in revenue recognition and operating
performance from period to period. Additionally, the proceeds from loan liquidations may vary significantly depending on the resolution methodology.
We generally expect to collect proceeds of loan liquidations in cash and, thereafter, have no continuing involvement with the asset.
iii. Change in unrealized gains from the conversion of loans to REO. Upon conversion of loans to REO, we mark the properties to the most recent market
value. The difference between the carrying value of the asset at the time of conversion and the most recent market value, based on BPOs, is recorded in
our statement of operations as change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans. We expect the timeline to convert acquired loans into REO will vary
significantly by loan, which could result in fluctuations in our revenue recognition and our operating performance from period to period. The factors that
may affect the timelines to foreclose upon a residential mortgage loan include, without limitation, state foreclosure timelines and deferrals associated
therewith; unauthorized parties occupying the property; inadequacy of documents necessary to foreclose; bankruptcy proceedings initiated by borrowers;
federal, state or local legislative action or initiatives designed to provide homeowners with assistance in avoiding residential mortgage loan foreclosures;
continued declines in real estate values and/or sustained high levels of unemployment that increase the number of foreclosures and which place additional
pressure and/or delays on the judicial and administrative proceedings.
iv. Change in unrealized gains from the change in fair value of loans. After our NPLs are acquired, the fair value of each loan is adjusted in each subsequent
reporting period as the loan proceeds to a particular resolution (i.e., modification, liquidation or conversion to real estate owned). As a loan approaches
resolution, the resolution timeline for that loan decreases, and costs embedded in the discounted cash flow model for loan servicing, foreclosure costs and
property insurance are incurred and removed from future expenses. The shorter resolution timelines and reduced future expenses each increase the fair
value of the loan. The increase in the value of the loan is recognized in change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans in our consolidated statements of
operations. The exact nature of resolution will be dependent on a number of factors that are beyond our control, including borrower willingness to pay,
property value, availability of refinancing, interest rates, conditions in the financial markets, the regulatory environment and other factors.
v.

Net realized gain on real estate. REO properties that do not meet our investment criteria are sold out of our taxable REIT subsidiary. The realized gain or
loss recognized in the financial statements reflects the net amount of realized and unrealized gains on sold REOs from the time of acquisition to sale
completion.

As we acquire more single-family rental properties in bulk and on a one-by-one basis and as we renovate and deem suitable for rent a greater number of our REO
properties, we expect that a greater portion of our revenues will be rental revenues. For the NPLs we have acquired to date, the average number of days to
determine whether a property met our rental profile was 235 days for the 295 properties on which renovations began during 2016. The average renovation expense
was $20,660 per property for the 1,118 renovations completed during 2016, the average number of days between commencement of renovation and listing of the
property for rent was 64 days for 275 properties for which renovation began during 2016, and the average number of days from listing to leasing a property was 34
days for 517 properties listed in 2016. We believe the key variables that will affect our rental revenues over the long term will be the number of acquired
properties, average occupancy levels and rental rates. We anticipate that a majority of our leases of single-family rental properties to tenants will be for a term of
one to two
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years. As these leases permit the residents to leave at the end of the lease term without penalty, we anticipate our rental revenues will be affected by declines in
market rents more quickly than if our leases were for longer terms. Short-term leases may result in high turnover, which involves expenses such as additional
renovation costs and leasing expenses or reduced rental revenues. Our occupancy rate is defined as leases in force in which the tenant is in place and occupying the
property and leases in force in which the tenant is expected to move in shortly as a percentage of our SFR properties that are leased or available for lease. Our
occupancy rate at September 30, 2016 was 92% . Our rental properties had an average annual rental rate of $14,184 per home for the 7,079 properties that were
leased at September 30, 2016 .
Although we seek to lease the majority of REO properties we acquire, we also sell the properties that do not meet our rental investment criteria to generate
additional cash for reinvestment in other acquisitions. The real estate market and home prices will determine proceeds from any sale of real estate. In addition,
while we seek to track real estate price trends and estimate the effects of those trends on the valuations of our portfolios of residential mortgage loans, future real
estate values are subject to influences beyond our control.
Our investment strategy is to develop a portfolio of single-family rental properties in the United States that provides attractive risk-adjusted returns on invested
capital. In determining which REO properties we retain for our rental portfolio, we consider various objective and subjective factors, including but not limited to
gross and net rental yields, property values, renovation costs, location in relation to our coverage area, property type, HOA covenants, potential future appreciation
and neighborhood amenities.
Expenses
Our expenses primarily consist of residential property operating expenses, depreciation and amortization, acquisition fees and costs, selling costs and impairment,
mortgage loan servicing costs, interest expense, general and administrative expenses, certain expense reimbursements to our Manager as well as management fees
to our Manager under the asset management agreement with AAMC dated March 31, 2015 (the “New AMA”). Under the original asset management agreement
with AAMC dated December 21, 2012 (the “Original AMA”), a larger portion of our expenses related to employee compensation and other expense
reimbursements to AAMC, but under the New AMA, we are not required to reimburse AAMC for its compensation expense other than for our dedicated General
Counsel and Secretary. Residential property operating expenses are expenses associated with our ownership and operation of residential properties, including
expenses such as property management fees, expenses towards repairs, utility expenses on vacant properties, turnover costs, property taxes, insurance and HOA
dues. Depreciation and amortization is a non-cash expense associated with the ownership of real estate and generally remains relatively consistent each year in
relation to our asset levels since we depreciate our properties on a straight-line basis over a fixed life. Acquisition fees and costs include due diligence fees,
property inspection fees, real estate commissions and other fees and costs involved in our efforts to acquire assets. Selling costs and impairment represents our
estimated and actual costs incurred to sell a property or mortgage loan and an amount that represents the carrying amount over the estimated fair value less costs to
sell. Mortgage loan servicing costs are primarily for servicing fees, foreclosure fees and advances of residential property insurance. Interest expense consists of the
costs to borrow money in connection with our debt financing of our portfolios. General and administrative expenses consist of the costs related to the general
operation and overall administration of our business. The fees to our Manager consist of compensation due to AAMC under the applicable asset management
agreement. Under the Original AMA, fees to our Manager were based on the amount of cash available for distribution to our stockholders for each period. Under
the New AMA, the management fees we pay to AAMC are a Base Management Fee based on a percentage of our invested capital (as defined in the New AMA), a
Conversion Fee for assets that are converted to single-family rentals during each quarter and an Incentive Management Fee calculated as a percentage of our return
on invested capital that exceeds a minimum threshold for each period. The percentage payment on each of these metrics will vary based on our number of leased
properties and through September 30, 2016, was 1.75% of our invested capital for our Base Management Fee and was 20% of our return on invested capital over
the minimum threshold for our Incentive Management Fee. With the completion of the HOME SFR Transaction, commencing in the fourth quarter of 2016, we
expect these fee percentages to increase to 2.0% and 25%, respectively.
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Other Factors Affecting Our Consolidated Results
We expect our results of operations will be affected by various factors, many of which are beyond our control, including the following:
Acquisitions
Our operating results will depend on our ability to identify and execute upon the acquisition of SFR properties and NPLs. We believe that there is currently a large
potential supply of REO properties and single-family rental properties available to us for acquisition.
Generally, we expect that our residential mortgage loan and single-family rental portfolios may grow at an uneven pace, as opportunities to acquire distressed
residential mortgage loans and REO properties may be irregularly timed and may at times involve large or small portfolios. The timing and extent of our success in
acquiring such assets cannot be predicted.
Financing
Our ability to grow our business is dependent on the availability of adequate financing, including additional equity financing, debt financing or both, in order to
meet our objectives. We intend to leverage our investments with debt, the level of which may vary based upon the particular characteristics of our portfolio and on
market conditions. To the extent available at the relevant time, our financing sources may include bank credit facilities, warehouse lines of credit, securitization
financing, structured financing arrangements, seller financing loan arrangements and repurchase agreements, among others. We may also seek to raise additional
capital through public or private offerings of debt or equity securities, depending upon market conditions. To qualify as a REIT under the Code, we will need to
distribute at least 90% of our taxable income each year to our stockholders. This distribution requirement limits our ability to retain earnings and thereby replenish
or increase capital to support our activities.
Loan Resolution Activities
The management and/or sale of our legacy portfolio of residential mortgage loans is an important focus of our business. For the mortgage loans remaining in our
portfolio, we seek to employ various loan resolution methodologies, through our servicers, with respect to our residential mortgage loans, including loan
modification, collateral resolution and collateral disposition. To help us achieve our business objective, we continue to focus on (1) converting a portion of our
NPLs to performing status and (2) managing the foreclosure process and timelines with respect to the remainder of those loans. Due to the continually evolving
market dynamics and pricing of distressed mortgage loans, we are opportunistically evaluating the different alternatives with respect to our loan portfolio including
potential sales, continued resolution and possible acquisitions of such loans.
Disposition of Loans
As discussed above, our loan resolution strategy has typically led to the disposition of NPLs primarily through short sales, refinancing, foreclosure sales and sale of
loans that had transitioned to re-performing loans from prior NPL acquisitions.
In the third quarter of 2015, we also commenced efforts to sell certain NPLs to take advantage of attractive market pricing and evolving market conditions. NPL
sales continue to be a growth engine for our company, allowing us to recycle capital that we may use to purchase rental properties that meet our return profile. We
have opportunistically sold 2,745 mortgage loans to unaffiliated third parties. We expect to market additional NPLs in the future. It is anticipated that the proceeds
generated from any such transactions would be utilized, in part, to facilitate the Company’s strategy to substantially grow its single-family rental assets through the
purchase of portfolios of single-family residential properties and on a one-by-one basis.
Resolution of Loans
Our preferred resolution methodology for the NPLs that we continue to hold has been modification. Once successfully modified, we expect that certain borrowers
will refinance their loans with other lenders or we will sell the modified loans after establishing a payment history at or near the unpaid principal balance,
potentially generating attractive returns for us.
Certain of our residential mortgage loans are liquidated as a result of a short sale, third party sale of the underlying property, refinancing or full debt pay-off of the
loan. Upon liquidation of a loan, we record net realized gains, including the
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reclassification of previously accumulated net unrealized gains on those mortgage loans. We expect the timeline to liquidate loans will vary significantly by loan,
which could result in fluctuations in revenue recognition and operating performance from period to period. Additionally, the proceeds from loan liquidations may
vary significantly depending on the resolution methodology used by us for each loan.
A portion of our residential mortgage loans become REO either through foreclosure or as a result of our acquisition of the property via alternative resolution such
as deed-in-lieu of foreclosure. Upon conversion of loans to REO, we mark the properties to the most recent market value, which is based on BPOs, and recognize
the net unrealized gains for the difference between the carrying value of the asset at the time of conversion and the most recent market value. The timeline to
convert acquired loans into REO can vary significantly by loan, which can result in fluctuations in our revenue recognition and our operating performance from
period to period. The factors that may affect the timelines to foreclose upon a residential mortgage loan include, without limitation, state foreclosure timelines and
deferrals associated therewith; unauthorized parties occupying the property; federal, state or local legislative action or initiatives designed to provide homeowners
with assistance in avoiding residential mortgage loan foreclosures; continued declines in real estate values and/or sustained high levels of unemployment that
increase the number of foreclosures and that place additional pressure and/or delays on judicial and administrative proceedings.
We anticipate that REO properties that meet our investment criteria will be converted into single-family rental properties, which we believe will generate long-term
returns for our stockholders. If an REO property does not meet our rental investment criteria, we expect to engage in REO liquidation to dispose of the property
and generate cash for reinvestment in other acquisitions, stock repurchases, dividend distributions or such other purposes as we may determine from time to time.
Portfolio Size
The size of our investment portfolio will also impact operating results. Generally, as the size of our investment portfolio grows, the amount of revenue we expect to
generate will increase. A growing investment portfolio, however, will drive increased expenses, including possibly higher servicing fees, property management
fees and, potentially, depending on our performance, fees payable to AAMC. We may also incur additional interest expense if we incur additional debt to finance
the purchase of our assets.
Results of Operations
The following sets forth discussion of our results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 versus the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2015 . Our results of operations for the periods presented are not indicative of our expected results in future periods.
Three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 versus three and nine months ended September 30, 2015
Rental revenues
Rental revenues increased to $9.6 million and $24.2 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, compared to $4.0 million and
$7.6 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively. The number of leased properties, excluding those acquired in the HOME SFR
Transaction, increased to 3,143 at September 30, 2016 from 2,105 at September 30, 2015, primarily due to the successful completion of SFR property acquisitions
since the third quarter of 2015. We expect to generate increasing rental revenues as we continue to acquire, renovate, list and rent additional residential rental
properties. Our rental revenues will depend primarily on the number of SFR properties as well as occupancy levels and rental rates for our residential rental
properties. Because our lease terms generally are expected to be one or two years, our occupancy levels and rental rates will be highly dependent on localized
residential rental markets and our renters’ desire to remain in our properties.
Change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans
Our change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans was $(41.2) million and $(155.3) million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively,
compared to $27.5 million and $130.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively. These declines were primarily due to the
reclassification of net realized gains on the resolution of mortgage loans and disposition of REOs, fewer REO conversions and lower accretion as the total
mortgage loan portfolio has decreased by approximately 54% since September 30, 2015. This decline was further emphasized by the fact that we have not
purchased any portfolios of mortgage loans since December 2014, which led to fewer loans available for
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conversion to REO. The change in unrealized gains for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and three and nine months ended September 30, 2015
can be categorized into the following three components:
•

First, we recognized an aggregate of $10.7 million and $34.8 million in unrealized gains upon conversion of mortgage loans to REO for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, compared to $17.0 million and $68.4 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 ,
respectively. Upon conversion of these mortgage loans to REO, we mark the properties to the most recent market value. During the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2016 , we converted a net of 246 and 914 mortgage loans to REO status compared to a net of 507 and 1,918 mortgage loans
converted to REO status during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively;

•

Second, we recognized an aggregate change in unrealized gains of $(12.9) million and $9.8 million from the net change in the fair value of loans for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to an increase in fair value of $33.9 million and $126.6 million during the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively. The fair value of our mortgage loans is based on the underlying value of the collateral, current market
conditions, different resolution scenarios and other factors. The assumptions utilized to determine fair value include, but are not limited to, equity discount
rate, debt to asset ratio, cost of funds estimates, projected resolution timelines and costs and changes in annual home pricing index. During the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2016 , the fair value of our mortgage loans was impacted primarily changes in our assumptions applied in the
estimation of fair value; and

•

Third, we reclassified an aggregate of $39.0 million and $199.9 million from unrealized gains on mortgage loans to realized gains on real estate and
mortgage loans, reflecting real estate sold and the resolution or sale of NPLs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively. This
compares to an aggregate of $23.4 million and $64.2 million reclassified from unrealized gains on mortgage loans to realized gains for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively.

Through the resolution and sale of NPLs during the first nine months of 2016, our portfolio of mortgage loans at fair value has decreased from 5,739 loans at
December 31, 2015 to 3,717 loans at September 30, 2016 . The fair value of mortgage loans is based on a number of factors that are difficult to predict and may be
subject to adverse changes in value depending on the financial condition of borrowers, as well as geographic, economic, market and other conditions. Therefore,
we may experience unrealized losses on our mortgage loans in the future.
Net realized gain on mortgage loans
Net realized gains on mortgage loans decreased to $9.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016 from $12.9 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2015 , principally due to a decrease in the volume of resolutions as the size of our mortgage loan portfolio has declined. We resolved 109 mortgage
loans in the three months ended September 30, 2016 as compared to our resolution of 145 mortgage loans in the three months ended September 30, 2015 ,
primarily from short sales, foreclosure sales and other liquidation events.
Net realized gains on mortgage loans decreased to $30.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 from $47.5 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2015 , principally due to a decrease in the volume of resolutions as the size of our mortgage loan portfolio has declined. We resolved 400 mortgage
loans in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 as compared to our resolution of 565 mortgage loans in the nine months ended September 30, 2015 , primarily
from short sales, foreclosure sales and other liquidation events.
Net realized gain on mortgage loans held for sale
Net realized gains on mortgage loans held for sale was nominal for the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to $0.1 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2015.
Net realized gains on mortgage loans held for sale increased to $50.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 from $0.5 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2015. This increase was principally due to the sale of 1,974 loans during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to resolutions
of seven re-performing loans during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 .
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Net realized gain on real estate
Net realized gains on real estate increased to $26.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016 from $13.9 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2015 . This increase was principally due to realized gains recognized on increased disposition of REO properties during the quarter of 604
properties from 357 properties, respectively.
Net realized gains on real estate increased to $94.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 from $36.9 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2015 . This increase was principally due realized gains recognized on increased disposition of REO properties during 2016 of 2,200 properties from 932
properties during 2015.
Interest income
Interest income increased to $209 thousand from $115 thousand for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 , respectively, primarily due to increases
in interest income on higher average interest-earning bank balances for the three months ended September 30, 2016 . This increase was partially offset by accretion
of interest income with respect to the re-performing loans acquired in June 2014 declining to $35 thousand from $112 thousand, respectively, as a result of sales
and resolutions of our re-performing loan portfolio. With the completion of the HOME SFR Transaction, in which we used $163.1 million of cash on hand to fund
the purchase price, our interest-earning bank balances have decreased, which is expected to result in a reduction of our interest income.
Interest income decreased to $425 thousand from $595 thousand for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 , respectively, primarily due to accretion
of interest income with respect to the re-performing loans acquired in June 2014 declining to $107 thousand from $581 thousand , respectively, as a result of sales
and resolutions of our re-performing loan portfolio. This decrease was partially offset by interest income on higher average interest-earning bank balances for the
nine months ended September 30, 2016 .
Residential property operating expenses
We incurred $15.0 million and $16.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 , respectively, and we incurred $51.2 million compared to
$45.9 million of residential property operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
At September 30, 2016 , excluding the HOME SFR Transaction that occurred at the end of the period, we had 6,469 total REO properties, of which 3,143 were
leased, compared to 6,270 REO properties, of which 2,105 were leased, at September 30, 2015 . Generally, we expect to incur increasing residential property
operating expenses as we convert more mortgage loans to and/or acquire more residential properties. However, we expect this increase arising from increased
volume of properties to be partially offset by a decrease in the average residential property operating expense as the proportionate number of non-rental properties
in our portfolio declines. Our residential property operating expenses for rental properties will be dependent primarily on residential property taxes and insurance,
property management fees, HOA dues and repair and maintenance expenditures. Our residential property operating expenses for properties held while we are
evaluating strategy will be dependent primarily on residential property taxes and insurance, property management fees, HOA dues, utilities, property preservation
and repairs and maintenance.
Real estate depreciation and amortization
We incurred $5.1 million and $12.8 million of real estate depreciation and amortization for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively,
compared to $2.1 million and $4.4 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively, due primarily to growth in our rental portfolio.
Our residential rental portfolio, excluding 4,262 properties acquired in the HOME SFR Transaction, increased to 4,279 properties at September 30, 2016 from
2,516 properties at September 30, 2015 . We expect to incur increasing real estate depreciation and amortization as we place more residential properties into
service. Real estate depreciation and amortization are non-cash expenditures that generally are not expected to be indicative of the market value or condition of our
residential rental properties.
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Acquisition fees and costs
We incurred $5.2 million and $8.3 million of acquisition fees and costs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, compared to $0.9
million and $1.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively, due primarily to $3.9 million in fees and costs incurred related to
the HOME SFR Transaction and other increased rental property acquisition activity during 2016.
Selling costs and impairment
Real estate selling costs of REO held for sale were $3.2 million and $19.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively,
compared to $5.9 million and $19.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively. As our portfolio of non-rental REO properties
declines, we expect to recognized lower selling costs upon transfer of REO properties to held for sale.
No mortgage loan selling costs were recognized in the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to $1.2 million in the three months ended September 30,
2015 . We recognized $1.0 million of mortgage loan selling costs for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, compared to $1.2 million of
mortgage loan selling costs for nine months ended September 30, 2015 .
We recognized $8.4 million and $29.2 million of REO valuation impairment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, compared to
$3.6 million and $13.4 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively. We record residential properties held for sale at the lower of
either the carrying amount of REO or its estimated fair value less estimated selling costs. If the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value, as adjusted, we
record impairment equal to the amount of such excess. If an increase in the fair value of our held for sale properties is noted at a subsequent measurement date, a
gain is recognized to the extent of any previous impairment recognized.
Mortgage loan servicing costs
We incurred $7.8 million and $28.0 million of mortgage loan servicing costs, primarily for advances of residential property insurance, foreclosure fees and
servicing fees for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, compared to $13.5 million and $48.0 million for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2015 , respectively. This reduction of servicing costs was primarily due to a reduction of loans requiring servicing following the conversion,
sale or other resolution of our mortgage loans without replenishing our loan portfolio in other loan acquisitions. We incur mortgage loan servicing and foreclosure
costs as our mortgage loan servicers provide servicing for our loans and pay for advances relating to property insurance, foreclosure attorney fees, foreclosure costs
and property preservation. Therefore, our loan servicing costs may fluctuate based on the size of our mortgage loan portfolio.
Interest expense
Interest expense related to borrowings under our repurchase and loan agreements (including amortization of deferred debt issuance costs) decreased to $10.2
million from $14.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. This decrease is primarily due to a decline in average
borrowings under our repurchase and loan agreements as well as a reduction in the interest rate upon renewal of one of our financing arrangements in 2016,
partially offset by a general increase in market rates. We expect that our interest expense will increase following the HOME SFR Transaction due to the additional
financing, but the interest rate is expected to remain consistent or decrease as a result of the interest rate under the seller financing.
Interest expense decreased to $37.1 million from $39.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. This decrease is primarily
due to a decline in average borrowings and a reduction in the interest rate upon renewal of one of our financing arrangements in 2016, partially offset by
accelerated amortization of deferred costs related to two securitizations that were collapsed during the first quarter of 2016 and a general increase in market rates.
The interest rates under our repurchase and loan facilities are subject to change, based on changes in the relevant index. We also expect our interest expense to
increase as our debt increases to fund and/or leverage our ownership of existing and additional portfolios.
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General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses increased slightly to $2.5 million from $2.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
primarily due to stock-based compensation expense related to awards granted under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan during the third quarter of 2016.
General and administrative expenses increased to $9.1 million from $8.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
increase in general and administrative expenses is primarily due to increased legal and professional costs related to a proxy contest during 2016 and stock-based
compensation expense related to awards granted under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan during the third quarter of 2016.
We reimbursed expenses to AAMC of $0.2 million and $0.6 million under the New AMA related to the compensation and benefits of the general counsel
dedicated to us and certain out-of-pocket expenses incurred by AAMC on our behalf during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, respectively, and
we reimbursed $0.8 million for salaries and benefits attributable to AAMC’s personnel providing services on behalf of our business for the first quarter of 2015
that was due to AAMC under the Original AMA.
Management fees
We incurred $4.7 million and $14.2 million of management fees for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, compared to $5.0 million
and $25.0 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 , respectively. These expenses included $4.2 million and $12.8 million in Base
Management Fees and $0.5 million and $1.4 million in Conversion Fees for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 , respectively, that were due to
AAMC under the New AMA. During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, we recognized Base Management Fees of $9.4 million and Conversion Fees of
$0.7 million under the New AMA as well as $14.9 million in management incentive fees (of which $6.9 million was determined to be reimbursable during the
fourth quarter of 2015).
Other income and expense
We recognized $0.8 million of other expense during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 related to the settlement of a proxy contest. We recognized $1.5
million and $3.5 million of other income during three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, reflecting a $1.5 million dividend received from
NewSource in the third quarter of 2015 pursuant to the terms of our preferred stock investment and $2.0 million received from AAMC in the first quarter of 2015
pursuant to a professional fee sharing arrangement for negotiation of the New AMA.
Liquidity and capital resources
As of September 30, 2016 , we had cash and cash equivalents of $56.9 million compared to $116.7 million as of December 31, 2015 . Our liquidity reflects our
ability to meet our current obligations (including our operating expenses and, when applicable, retirement of, and margin calls relating to, our financing
arrangements) and make distributions to our stockholders. We are required to distribute at least 90% of our taxable income each year to our stockholders to qualify
as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, and to date in 2016, we have distributed in excess of our taxable income to maintain our quarterly dividend level of
$0.15 per share. This distribution requirement limits our ability to retain earnings and thereby replenish or increase capital to support our activities.
We were initially funded with $100.0 million on December 21, 2012. Since our separation, our primary sources of liquidity have been proceeds from equity
offerings, borrowings under our repurchase and loan agreements and securitization financings, interest payments we receive from our portfolio of mortgage assets,
cash generated from loan liquidations and cash generated from our rental portfolio. We expect our existing business strategy will require additional debt and/or
equity financing. Our Manager continues to explore a variety of financing sources to support our growth, including, but not limited to, debt financing through bank
warehouse lines of credit, additional and/or amended repurchase agreements, term financing, securitization transactions, seller financing loan arrangements and
additional debt or equity offerings. Based on our current borrowing capacity, leverage ratio and anticipated additional debt financing transactions, we believe that
these sources of liquidity will be sufficient to enable us to meet anticipated short-term (one year) liquidity requirements, including paying expenses on our existing
residential rental and loan portfolios, funding distributions to our stockholders, paying fees to AAMC under the asset management agreement and general corporate
expenses. However, there can be no assurance as to how much additional financing capacity such efforts will produce, what form the financing will take or that
such efforts will be successful. If we are
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unable to renew, replace or expand our sources of financing, our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations may be materially and adversely
affected.
From May 2013 through January 2014, we completed the three public equity offerings and, to date, we have established the following credit facilities and
securitization transactions:
Repurchase and Loan Agreements
We had entered into three separate repurchase agreements to finance the acquisition and ownership of single-family rental properties, other REO properties and
mortgage loans in our portfolio. In March 2016, our repurchase agreement with Deutsche Bank (“DB”) expired pursuant to its terms and is no longer outstanding.
Therefore, at September 30, 2016, we were party to two repurchase agreements. In addition, we entered into two loan agreements for the purpose of financing our
beneficial ownership of REO properties. A description of each agreement follows below:
Each of our repurchase and loan agreements is described below:
Repurchase Agreements
•

Credit Suisse (“CS”) is the lender on the repurchase agreement entered into on March 22, 2013, (the “CS repurchase agreement”) with an initial aggregate
maximum borrowing capacity of $100.0 million . During 2014 and 2015, the CS repurchase agreement was amended on several occasions, ultimately
increasing the aggregate maximum borrowing capacity to $275.0 million on December 31, 2015 with a maturity date of April 18, 2016. On March 31,
2016, we entered into an amended and restated repurchase agreement with CS that increased our aggregate borrowing capacity to $350.0 million ,
extended the maturity date to March 30, 2017 and removed the REO sublimit under the facility so that 100% of the financed assets can be REO
properties.

•

DB was the lender on the repurchase agreement dated September 12, 2013 (the “DB repurchase agreement”). During March 2016, upon the expiration of
the DB repurchase agreement in accordance with its terms, we repaid the remaining balance of the DB repurchase agreement and transferred the collateral
to our other existing facilities.

•

Wells Fargo (“Wells”) is the lender under the repurchase agreement dated September 23, 2013 (the “Wells repurchase agreement”) with an initial
aggregate maximum borrowing capacity of $200.0 million . Throughout 2013, 2014 and 2015, the Wells repurchase agreement was amended on several
occasions, ultimately increasing the aggregate maximum borrowing capacity to $750.0 million with a maturity date of September 27, 2017.

Loan Agreements
•

Nomura Corporate Funding Americas, LLC (“Nomura”) is the lender under a loan agreement dated April 10, 2015 (the “Nomura loan agreement”) with
an initial aggregate maximum funding capacity of $100.0 million . The Nomura loan agreement was amended during 2015, ultimately increasing the
maximum funding capacity to $200.0 million on December 31, 2015 with a maturity date of April 8, 2016. On April 7, 2016, we entered into an amended
and restated loan and security agreement with Nomura that increased our aggregate borrowing capacity to $250.0 million and extended the termination
date to April 16, 2017.

•

In connection with the seller financing related to the HOME SFR Transaction, on September 30, 2016, we entered into a loan agreement (the “Original
MSR loan agreement”) between HOME Borrower, the sellers (collectively, the “Lenders”) and MSR Lender LLC, as agent. Pursuant to the Original MSR
loan agreement, HOME Borrower borrowed approximately $489.3 million from the Lenders (the “MSR Loan”). Effective October 14, 2016, the Original
MSR loan agreement was assigned to MSR Lender, LLC (“MSR Lender”) and, in connection with MSR Lender’s securitization of the MSR Loan, we and
MSR Lender amended and restated the Original MSR loan agreement (the “A&R MSR loan agreement”) to revise the initial principal amount and fixedrate spread over one-month LIBOR for each component of the MSR Loan set forth in the Original MSR loan agreement. The aggregate amount of the
MSR Loan and the aggregate interest rate of the MSR Loan under the A&R MSR loan agreement remain unchanged from the Original MSR loan
agreement. The MSR Loan is a floating rate loan, composed of eight floating rate components, interest on each of which is computed monthly based on
one-month LIBOR plus a fixed component spread. The initial maturity date of the MSR Loan is November 9, 2018 (the “Initial Maturity Date”). HOME
Borrower has the option to extend the MSR Loan beyond the Initial Maturity Date for three successive one-year terms to an ultimate maturity date of
November 9, 2021, provided, among other things, that there is no event of default under the A&R MSR loan
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agreement on each maturity date. The MSR Loan is non-recourse to us and is secured by a lien on the membership interests of HOME Borrower and the
acquired properties and other assets of HOME Borrower . The assets of HOME Borrower are the primary source of repayment and interest on the MSR
Loan, thereby making the cash proceeds received by HOME Borrower of rent payments and any sales of the acquired properties the primary sources of
the payment of interest and principal by HOME Borrower to MSR Lender.
The A&R MSR loan agreement requires that HOME Borrower comply with various affirmative and negative covenants that are customary for loans of
this type, including limitations on indebtedness HOME Borrower can incur, limitations on sales and dispositions of the properties and various restrictions
on the use of cash generated by the operations of the properties while the MSR Loan is outstanding.
In order to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the A&R MSR loan agreement, HOME Borrower entered into an interest rate cap agreement for the
initial two-year term of the MSR Loan, with a LIBOR-based strike rate equal to 2.938%.
Under the terms of our repurchase agreements with CS and Wells, as collateral for the funds drawn thereunder, subject to certain conditions, our operating
partnership and/or an intervening limited liability company subsidiary will sell to the applicable lender equity interests in the Delaware statutory trust subsidiary
that owns the applicable underlying mortgage assets on our behalf, or the trust will directly sell such underlying mortgage or REO assets. In the event the lender
determines the value of the collateral has decreased, the lender has the right to initiate a margin call and require us, or the applicable trust subsidiary, to post
additional collateral or to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings. The price paid by the lender for each mortgage or REO asset we finance under the
repurchase agreements is based on a percentage of the market value of the mortgage or REO asset and, in the case of mortgage assets, may depend on its
delinquency status. With respect to funds drawn under the repurchase agreements, our applicable subsidiary is required to pay the lender interest based on LIBOR
or at the lender’s cost of funds plus a spread calculated based on the type of applicable assets collateralizing the funding, as well as certain other customary fees,
administrative costs and expenses to maintain and administer the repurchase agreements. We do not collateralize any of our repurchase facilities with cash.
The repurchase agreements require us to maintain various financial and other covenants, including maintaining a minimum adjusted tangible net worth, a
maximum ratio of indebtedness to adjusted tangible net worth and specified levels of unrestricted cash. In addition, the repurchase agreements contain customary
events of default.
We are currently in compliance with the covenants and other requirements with respect to our repurchase agreements. We monitor our banking partners’ ability to
perform under the repurchase agreements and have concluded there is currently no reason to doubt that they will continue to perform under the repurchase
agreements as contractually obligated.
As amended, the two remaining repurchase agreements provide for the lenders to finance our portfolio at advance rates (or purchase prices) ranging from 40% to
80% of the “asset value” of the mortgage loans and REO properties. The amounts borrowed under our repurchase agreements are generally subject to the
application of "haircuts." A haircut is the percentage discount that a lender applies to the market value of an asset serving as collateral for a borrowing under a
repurchase agreement, for the purpose of determining whether such borrowing is adequately collateralized. As of September 30, 2016 , the weighted average
contractual haircut applicable to the REO properties and mortgage loans that serve as collateral for our outstanding repurchase agreements was 11.8% of the
carrying value of such assets. Under these repurchase agreements, the “asset value” generally is an amount that is based on the market value of the mortgage loan
or REO property as determined by the lender. We believe these are typical market terms that are designed to provide protection for the lender to collateralize its
advances to us in the event the collateral declines in value. Under each of the repurchase agreements, if the carrying value of the collateral declines beyond certain
limits, we would have to either (a) provide additional collateral or (b) repurchase certain assets under the agreement to maintain the applicable advance rate.
The decrease in amounts outstanding under our repurchase agreements and the Nomura loan agreement from December 31, 2015 to September 30, 2016 is
primarily due to the sale or liquidation of NPLs and REO properties, partially offset by acquisitions of SFR properties. Our overall advance rate under the
repurchase and loan agreements, excluding the A&R MSR loan agreement, increased from 55.7% at December 31, 2015 to 57.7% at September 30, 2016 ,
primarily due to the movement of REO properties and NPLs to facilities with higher advance rates. The advance rate on the A&R MSR loan agreement is 75% of
the aggregate purchase price.
The purpose of the Nomura loan agreement is to finance our beneficial ownership of single-family rental properties and other REO properties. These obligations
are fully guaranteed pursuant to a guarantee made by us in favor of Nomura. The Nomura
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loan agreement terminates on April 16, 2017. Under the terms of the Nomura loan agreement, subject to certain conditions, Nomura may advance funds to us from
time to time, with such advances collateralized by single-family rental properties and other REO properties. The aggregate maximum funding capacity for the REO
properties under the Nomura loan agreement as of September 30, 2016 was $250.0 million, subject to certain sublimits, eligibility requirements and conditions
precedent to each funding.
The advances paid under the Nomura loan agreement with respect to applicable properties from time to time will be based on a percentage of the market value of
the such properties. Under the terms of the Nomura loan agreement, we are required to pay interest based on the one-month LIBOR plus a spread and certain other
customary fees, administrative costs and expenses in connection with Nomura's structuring, management and ongoing administration of the facility.
The Nomura loan agreement requires us to maintain various financial and other covenants, including a minimum adjusted tangible net worth, a maximum ratio of
indebtedness to adjusted tangible net worth and specified levels of unrestricted cash. In addition, the Nomura loan agreement contains events of default (subject to
certain materiality thresholds and grace periods), including payment defaults, breaches of covenants and/or certain representations and warranties, cross-defaults,
certain material adverse changes, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings and other events of default customary for this type of transaction. The remedies for such
events of default are also customary for this type of transaction and include the acceleration of the principal amount outstanding under the Nomura loan agreement
and the liquidation by Nomura of the REO properties then subject to the facility.
The following table sets forth data with respect to our contractual obligations under our repurchase and loan agreements as of and for the three months ended
September 30, 2016 , December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015 ($ in thousands):
Three months ended
September 30, 2016
Balance at end of period

$

1,189,253

Maximum month end balance outstanding during the period

Three months ended
December 31, 2015
$

767,513

Three months ended
September 30, 2015
$

929,478

1,189,253

953,586

929,478

Weighted average quarterly balance

737,049

882,874

864,995

Amount of available funding at end of period

650,006

512,431

386,699

Securitizations
On June 29, 2015, we completed a securitization transaction in which ARLP 2015-1 issued $205.0 million in ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes with a weighted coupon
of approximately 4.01% and $60.0 million in ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes. ARLP 2015-1 is a Delaware statutory trust that is wholly owned by our operating
partnership with a federally chartered bank as its trustee. We retained $34.0 million of the ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes and all of the ARLP 2015-1 Class M
Notes. No interest will be paid on any ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes while any ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes remain outstanding. The ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes
and ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes are non-recourse to us and are secured solely by the NPLs and REO properties of ARLP 2015-1 but not by any of our other
assets. The assets of ARLP 2015-1 are the only source of repayment and interest on the ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes and the ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes, thereby
making the cash proceeds received by ARLP 2015-1 of loan payments, loan liquidations, loan sales and sales of converted REO properties the sole sources of the
payment of interest and principal by ARLP 2015-1 to the bond holders. The ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes and the ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes mature on May 25,
2055 and May 25, 2044, respectively, and we do not guarantee any of the obligations of ARLP 2015-1 under the terms of the indenture governing the notes or
otherwise. As of September 30, 2016 , the book value of the underlying securitized assets held by ARLP 2015-1 was $267.0 million .
On November 25, 2014, we completed a securitization transaction in which ARLP 2014-2 issued $270.8 million in ARLP 2014-2 Class A Notes with a weighted
yield of approximately 3.85% and $234.0 million in ARLP 2014-2 Class M Notes. We repaid the notes issued under ARLP 2014-2 and terminated the
securitization in March 2016.
On September 25, 2014, we completed a securitization transaction in which ARLP 2014-1 issued $150.0 million in ARLP 2014-1 Class A Notes with a weighted
yield of approximately 3.47% and $32.0 million in ARLP 2014-1 Class M Notes with a weighted yield of 4.25% . We repaid the notes issued under ARLP 2014-1
and terminated the securitization in March 2016.
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Following the repayment of the notes issued under the ARLP 2014-1 and 2014-2 securitizations during the first quarter of 2016, only the ARLP 2015-1
securitization remained in force. The following table sets forth data with respect to these notes as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 ($ in thousands):
Interest Rate

Amount Outstanding

September 30, 2016
ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2015-1
ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due May 25, 2055 (1)

4.01%

ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due May 25, 2044

$

—%

191,950
60,000

Intercompany eliminations
Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(34,000)

Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due to ARLP

(60,000)

Less: deferred debt issuance costs

(964)
$

156,986

$

136,404

December 31, 2015
ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2014-1
ARLP 2014-1 Class A Notes (2)

3.47%

ARLP 2014-1 Class M Notes (2)

4.25%

32,000

ARLP 2014-2 Class A Notes (2)

3.63%

244,935

ARLP 2014-2 Class M Notes (2)

—%

234,010

4.01%

203,429

—%

60,000

ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2014-2

ARLP Securitization Trust, Series 2015-1
ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due May 25, 2055 (1)
ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due May 25, 2044
Intercompany eliminations
Elimination of ARLP 2014-1 Class M Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(32,000)

Elimination of ARLP 2014-2 Class A Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(45,138)

Elimination of ARLP 2014-2 Class M Notes due to ARLP

(234,010)

Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class A Notes due to ARNS, Inc.

(34,000)

Elimination of ARLP 2015-1 Class M Notes due to ARLP

(60,000)

Less: deferred debt issuance costs

(3,031)
$

502,599

_____________
(1) The expected redemption date for the Class A Notes ranges from June 25, 2018 to June 25, 2019.
(2) Repaid during March 2016.
Repurchases of Common Stock
The Board of Directors has authorized a stock repurchase program under which we may repurchase up to $100.0 million in shares of our common stock. At
September 30, 2016 , a total of $43.8 million in shares of our common stock had been repurchased to date under this authorization, including $18.8 million in
common stock repurchased during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 . Repurchased shares are held as shares available for future issuance and are
available for general corporate purposes.
Amendment and Waiver Agreement with Altisource Solutions
In connection with the HOME SFR Transaction and to enable MSR to be property manager for the acquired properties, we and Altisource Solutions entered into an
Amendment and Waiver Agreement (the “Amendment and Waiver Agreement”) to amend the Master Services Agreement (the “MSA”) between Altisource
Solutions and us, dated December 21, 2012, under which Altisource Solutions is the exclusive provider of leasing and property management services to the us.
Pursuant to the Amendment and Waiver Agreement, we obtained a waiver of the exclusivity requirements under the MSA for the acquired
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properties. Additionally, the Amendment and Waiver Agreement permits us to utilize the property management services of MSR in connection with up to
approximately 3,000 additional properties if we acquire such additional properties from an investment fund or other entity affiliated with Amherst in one or more
transactions prior to June 30, 2017. The Amendment and Waiver Agreement also amended the MSA to require us or any surviving entity to pay a $60 million
liquidation fee to Altisource Solutions if (i) we sell, liquidate or dispose of 50% or more of our SFR portfolio managed by Altisource Solutions over a rolling
eighteen (18) month period without using the proceeds of such sales, liquidations or disposals to purchase additional SFR assets or if (ii) the surviving entity in a
change of control does not assume the MSA with Altisource Solutions as property manager. The liquidation fee will not be required to be paid if we or any
surviving entity terminate the MSA as a result of a material breach of the MSA by Altisource Solutions, for Altisource Solutions’ failure to meet certain specified
performance standards or for certain other customary reasons. Should we be required to pay the liquidation fee, our liquidity would be materially and adversely
impacted.
Cash Flows
We report and analyze our cash flows based on operating activities, investing activities and financing activities. The following table sets forth the changes in our
cash flows ($ in thousands):
Nine months ended
September 30, 2016
Net cash used in operating activities

$

(86,887)

Net cash provided by investing activities

$

500,439

Net cash used in financing activities
Total cash flows

Nine months ended
September 30, 2015

(59,812)

$

188,756

(473,364)
$

(163,107)

Change

(7,934)
$

17,715

76,220
311,683
(465,430)

$

(77,527)

Net cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 consisted primarily of net loss for the period and net realized gains on
mortgage loans and real estate, partially offset by a net reclassification of unrealized gains on mortgage loans to realized gains, selling costs and impairments on
real estate and mortgage loans and net changes in operating assets and liabilities. Net cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30,
2015 consisted primarily of the change in unrealized gain on mortgage loans, realized gains on our mortgage loans and real estate and changes in operating assets
and liabilities, partially offset by net income.
Net cash provided by investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 consisted primarily of proceeds from mortgage loan resolutions and
dispositions and dispositions of real estate, partially offset by investment in real estate and renovations. Net cash provided by investing activities for the nine
months ended September 30, 2015 consisted primarily of mortgage loan resolutions and dispositions and dispositions of real estate, partially offset by investment
in real estate.
Net cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 consisted primarily of repayments of the notes issued by the ARLP 2014-1 and
ARLP 2014-2 securitization trusts, net repayments of repurchase and loan agreements (excluding the seller financing related to the HOME SFR Transaction),
repurchases of common stock and the payment of dividends. Net cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 consisted
primarily of net repayments of repurchase and loan agreements, repurchases of common stock and payment of dividends, partially offset by net proceeds of other
secured debt.
Off-balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as of September 30, 2016 or December 31, 2015.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Item 1 - Financial statements (unaudited) - Note 1, “Organization and basis of presentation - Recently issued accounting standards.”
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Critical Accounting Judgments
Accounting standards require information in financial statements about the risks and uncertainties inherent in significant estimates, and the application of generally
accepted accounting principles involves the exercise of varying degrees of judgment. Certain amounts included in or affecting our financial statements and related
disclosures must be estimated, which requires us to make certain assumptions with respect to values or conditions that cannot be known with certainty at the time
our consolidated financial statements are prepared. These estimates and assumptions affect the amounts we report for our assets and liabilities, our revenues and
expenses during the reporting period and our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our consolidated financial statements. Actual results may
differ significantly from our estimates, and any effects on our business, financial position or results of operations resulting from revisions to these estimates are
recorded in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known. For additional details on our critical accounting judgments, please see Item 7.
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Critical Accounting Judgments” in our annual report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2015 as filed with the SEC on February 29, 2016.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market risk includes risks that arise from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes that
affect market sensitive instruments. The primary market risks that we are currently exposed to are real estate risk and interest rate risk. A substantial portion of our
investments are, and we expect will continue to be, comprised of NPLs and rental properties. The primary driver of the value of both these asset classes is the fair
value of the underlying real estate.
Real Estate Risk
Residential property values are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by a number of factors, including, but not limited to: national, regional and local
economic conditions (which may be adversely affected by industry slowdowns and other factors); local real estate conditions (such as an oversupply of housing);
construction quality, age and design; demographic factors; and retroactive changes to building or similar codes. Decreases in property values could cause us to
suffer losses.
Interest Rate Risk
We will be exposed to interest rate risk from our (a) acquisition and ownership of residential mortgage loans and (b) debt financing activities. Interest rate risk is
highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax policies, domestic and international economic and political considerations and other
factors beyond our control. Changes in interest rates may affect the fair value of the residential mortgage loans and real estate underlying our portfolios as well as
our financing interest rate expense.
To date, we have not hedged the risk associated with the residential mortgage loans and real estate underlying our portfolios. However, we may undertake risk
mitigation activities with respect to our debt financing interest rate obligations. We expect that our debt financing will at times be based on a floating rate of
interest calculated on a fixed spread over the relevant index, as determined by the particular financing arrangement. A significantly rising interest rate environment
could have an adverse effect on the cost of our financing. To mitigate this risk, we may use derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and interest
rate caps in an effort to reduce the variability of earnings caused by changes in the interest rates we pay on our debt.
These derivative transactions will be entered into solely for risk management purposes, not for investment purposes. When undertaken, these derivative
instruments likely will expose us to certain risks such as price and interest rate fluctuations, timing risk, volatility risk, credit risk, counterparty risk and changes in
the liquidity of markets. Therefore, although we expect to transact in these derivative instruments purely for risk management, they may not adequately protect us
from fluctuations in our financing interest rate obligations.
We entered into our first interest rate cap on September 29, 2016 in order to manage the economic risk of increases in the floating rate portion of the A&R MSR
loan agreement. We will be reimbursed by the counterparty of the interest rate cap to the extent that the one-month LIBOR exceeds the strike rate based on the
scheduled notional amount of the interest rate cap. We are also exposed to counterparty risk should the counterparty fail to meet its obligations under the terms of
the agreement.
We currently borrow funds at variable rates using secured financings. At September 30, 2016 , we had $700.0 million of variable rate debt outstanding not
protected by interest rate hedge contracts and $489.0 million that was protected by the interest rate cap. The estimated aggregate fair market value of our aggregate
variable rate borrowings was $1.2 billion . If the weighted
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average interest rate on this variable rate debt had been 100 basis points higher or lower, the annual interest expense would increase or decrease by $11.9 million ,
respectively.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company's filings under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's
rules and forms and to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
and Rule 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report. Based upon that evaluation, management has determined that
the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2016 .
As disclosed in Item 9A of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, management reported a material weakness over
the review of assumptions used to determine the fair value of mortgage loans. In an effort to remediate this internal control deficiency, during the fourth quarter of
2015 and the six months ended June 30, 2016, we designed, documented and implemented additional control procedures related to the review of the assumptions
utilized in the Company's determination of the fair value of the mortgage loans. As of and since June 30, 2016, we determined that such additional controls
effectively remediate the material weakness described above.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2016 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Limitations on Controls
Our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives as
specified above. Management does not expect, however, that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or
detect all error or fraud. Any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based upon certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that its objectives will be met. Further, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will
not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected.
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Part II
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we may be involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Set forth below is a summary of legal
proceedings to which we are a party during 2016 :
Martin v. Altisource Residential Corporation et al.
On March 27, 2015, a putative shareholder class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court of the Virgin Islands by a purported shareholder of
the Company under the caption Martin v. Altisource Residential Corporation, et al. , 15-cv-00024. The action names as defendants the Company, Mr. Erbey and
certain officers and a former officer of the Company and alleges that the defendants violated federal securities laws by, among other things, making materially
false statements and/or failing to disclose material information to the Company's shareholders regarding the Company's relationship and transactions with AAMC,
Ocwen and Home Loan Servicing Solutions, Ltd. These alleged misstatements and omissions include allegations that the defendants failed to adequately disclose
the Company's reliance on Ocwen and the risks relating to its relationship with Ocwen, including that Ocwen was not properly servicing and selling loans, that
Ocwen was under investigation by regulators for violating state and federal laws regarding servicing of loans and Ocwen’s lack of proper internal controls. The
complaint also contains allegations that certain of the Company's disclosure documents were false and misleading because they failed to disclose fully the entire
details of a certain asset management agreement between the Company and AAMC that allegedly benefited AAMC to the detriment of the Company's
shareholders. The action seeks, among other things, an award of monetary damages to the putative class in an unspecified amount and an award of attorney’s and
other fees and expenses.
In May 2015, two of our purported shareholders filed competing motions with the court to be appointed lead plaintiff and for selection of lead counsel in the
action. Subsequently, opposition and reply briefs were filed by the purported shareholders with respect to these motions. On October 7, 2015, the court entered an
order granting the motion of Lei Shi to be lead plaintiff and denying the other motion to be lead plaintiff.
On January 23, 2016, the lead plaintiff filed an amended complaint.
On March 22, 2016, defendants filed a motion to dismiss all claims in the action. The plaintiffs filed opposition papers on May 20, 2016, and the defendants filed a
reply brief in support of the motion to dismiss the amended complaint on July 11, 2016.
We believe the complaint is without merit and intend to vigorously defend the action. At this time, we are not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter,
nor can we estimate the range of possible loss, if any.
Sokolowski v. Erbey, et al.
On December 24, 2014, a shareholder derivative action was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida by a purported shareholder
of Ocwen. The action named the directors of Ocwen as defendants and alleged, among other things, various breaches of fiduciary duties by the directors of Ocwen.
On February 11, 2015, plaintiff filed an amended complaint naming the directors of Ocwen as defendants and also naming the Company, AAMC, Altisource and
Home Loan Servicing Solutions, Ltd. as alleged aiders and abettors of the purported breaches of fiduciary duties. The amended complaint alleges that the directors
of Ocwen breached their fiduciary duties by, among other things, allegedly failing to exercise oversight over Ocwen’s compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations; failing to exercise oversight responsibilities with respect to the accounting and financial reporting processes of Ocwen; failing to prevent conflicts of
interest and allegedly improper related party transactions; failing to adhere to Ocwen’s code of conduct and corporate governance guidelines; selling personal
holdings of Ocwen stock on the basis of material adverse inside information; and disseminating allegedly false and misleading statements regarding Ocwen’s
compliance with regulatory obligations and allegedly self-dealing transactions with related companies. Plaintiff claims that as a result of the alleged breaches of
fiduciary duties, Ocwen has suffered damages, including settlements with regulatory agencies in excess of $2 billion, injury to its reputation and corporate
goodwill and exposure to governmental investigations and securities and consumer class action lawsuits. In addition to the derivative claims, the plaintiff also
alleges an individual claim that Ocwen’s 2014 proxy statement allegedly contained untrue statements of material fact and failed to disclose material information in
violation of federal securities laws. The plaintiff seeks, among other things, an order requiring the defendants to repay to Ocwen unspecified amounts by which
Ocwen has been damaged or will be damaged, an award of an unspecified amount of exemplary damages, changes to Ocwen's corporate governance and an award
of attorneys’ and other fees and expenses.
On April 13, 2015, nominal defendant Ocwen and defendants Mr. Erbey and Mr. Faris filed a motion to stay the action.
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On July 16, 2015, we filed a motion to dismiss all claims against us in the action, based upon, among other arguments, lack of personal jurisdiction and failure to
state a claim. Co-defendant AAMC filed a similar motion to dismiss the complaint as to all claims asserted against it.
On December 8, 2015, the court granted AAMC’s and our motions to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction with leave to amend the jurisdiction allegations no
later than January 4, 2016.
On December 15, 2015, Hutt v. Erbey, et al. , Case No. 15-cv-81709-WPD, was transferred to the Southern District of Florida from the Northern District of
Georgia. That same day, a third related derivative action, Lowinger v. Erbey, et al. , Case No. 15-cv-62628-WPD, was also filed in the Southern District of Florida.
The court then requested that the parties file a response stating their positions as to whether the actions should be consolidated. On December 29, 2015, we filed a
response stating that we took no position on the issue of consolidation, so long as our defenses were fully reserved should plaintiff Sokolowski seek to file an
amended complaint. Neither plaintiff Sokolowski nor plaintiff Hutt opposed consolidation in their responses. On December 30, 2015, the court issued an order that,
among other things, extended the deadline for plaintiff Sokolowski to file its amended complaint to cure the jurisdictional defects as to AAMC and us until January
13, 2016. On January 8, 2016, the court issued an order consolidating the three related actions.
On February 2, 2016, Plaintiffs Sokolowski and Lowinger filed competing motions for appointment of lead counsel in the consolidated action. These motions were
fully briefed on February 5, 2016. Subsequently, on February 17, 2016, the court issued an order appointing Sokolowski’s counsel as lead counsel with Lowinger’s
and Hutt’s counsel serving on the executive committee of the plaintiffs. It also ordered that a consolidated complaint in the matter shall be filed no later than March
8, 2016.
On March 8, 2016, the plaintiffs filed a consolidated certified shareholder derivative complaint (the “Consolidated Complaint”) in the action. On March 11, the
Special Litigation Committee of Ocwen sought additional time beyond the March 31, 2016 originally anticipated completion date to analyze the Consolidated
Complaint. On March 22, 2016, the parties filed a joint consent motion for entry of an order amending the briefing schedule regarding the Consolidated Complaint.
On March 23, 2016, the court entered a scheduling order requiring defendants to file their motions to dismiss on or before May 13, 2016, plaintiffs to file a
response to any such motion on or before June 17, 2016 and defendants to file any reply briefs on or before July 15, 2016.
On May 13, 2016, we filed a motion to dismiss the Sokolowski action as to us. Subsequently, plaintiffs sought and received an extension to file their opposition to
the defendants' motions to dismiss to August 19, 2016, and a further extension to September 29, 2016.
On September 13, 2016, plaintiffs, Ocwen, Mr. Erbey, Mr. Faris, and Mr. Britti requested that the court transfer the case to Magistrate Judge Snow in order to
assist with settlement negotiations. The court granted the request, and counsel for plaintiffs and Ocwen appeared before Magistrate Judge Snow on October 13,
2016 for a settlement conference. At the conference, plaintiffs and Ocwen reached an agreement in principle to resolve certain claims, which Ocwen has publicly
disclosed it believes will be covered in full by its applicable insurance coverage. Based on our understanding of the settlement terms, we believe the settlement
agreement will include our release from any and all liability in the matter. Plaintiffs filed a Settlement Term Sheet under seal on October 18, 2016. The Stipulation
of Settlement is due on or before November 18, 2016. A Final Approval Hearing will be held on January 18, 2017.
We believe the complaint against us is without merit. At this time, we are not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter, nor can we estimate the range of
possible loss, if any.
Moncavage v. Faris, et al.
In March, 2015, a shareholder derivative action was filed in the Circuit Court for the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida by a
purported shareholder of Ocwen under the caption Moncavage v. Ronald Faris, et al. , Case No. 2015-CA-03244 (MB-AD). The action named certain officers and
directors of Ocwen as defendants and alleged, among other things, various breaches of fiduciary duties by these individual defendants. The action also named
Altisource, Home Loan Servicing Solutions, Ltd. and us as alleged aiders and abettors of the purported breaches of fiduciary duties. The allegations of wrongdoing
contained in the Moncavage action are similar to the allegations in the Sokolowski action updated above. On July 13, 2015, the plaintiff and we jointly filed a
stipulation of an extension of time to respond to the pending motions to stay the action that had been filed by Ocwen and the individual defendants. On November
9, 2015, the court granted Ocwen’s motion to stay the action in its entirety for a period of 180 days .
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We believe the claims against us in the matter are without merit. At this time, we are not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this matter, nor can we estimate
the range of possible loss, if any.
Management does not believe that we have incurred an estimable, probable or material loss by reason of any of the above actions.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
There have been no material changes in our risk factors since December 31, 2015 other than the risk factors provided below in connection with the HOME SFR
Transaction and the MSR Loan. For information regarding our risk factors, you should carefully consider the risk factors discussed below as well as the risk factors
provided in "Item 1A. Risk factors" in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 filed with the SEC on February 29, 2016.
Our inability to make interest payments on the MSR Loan and/or pay principal and interest at maturity of the MSR Loan would have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial condition.
The MSR Loan we entered into as part of the HOME SFR Transaction is secured by the membership interests in HOME Borrower and the properties and other
assets held by HOME Borrower. Upon the occurrence of a default of the payment of principal and/or interest of the MSR Loan, recourse may generally be had
against the assets of HOME Borrower including the interest rate cap agreement used to hedge the interest rate risk of the MSR Loan, and the membership interests
in HOME Borrower. The primary security and source of payment for the MSR Loan are the cash flows generated by the properties of HOME Borrower and the
other collateral described in the A&R MSR loan agreement. Since revenues from the properties held by HOME Borrower generally serve as the primary source for
monthly payments due on the MSR Loan, if revenue from the properties is reduced or if expenses incurred in the operation of the properties increase, the ability of
HOME Borrower to make payments with respect to the MSR Loan may be impaired. Similarly, the A&R MSR loan agreement will require HOME Borrower to
make a balloon payment at the ultimate maturity date of the MSR Loan. The ability of HOME Borrower to sell and/or refinance the properties and to make the
payment on the maturity date, or of HOME Equity to sell and/or refinance its equity interest in HOME Borrower to timely perform its guaranty obligations with
respect to such maturity date payment, could be impaired by a decline in the value of the collateral properties. If HOME Borrower is unable to make payments
under the MSR Loan or fail to make payment at maturity, the MSR Lender would be able to take possession/title to the membership interests of HOME Borrower
and the properties and other assets of HOME Borrower to satisfy and discharge the MSR Loan obligations. In such an event, our overall results of operations and
financial condition would be materially adversely affected.
Even though the MSR Loan is non-recourse to us and all of our subsidiaries other than HOME Equity and HOME Borrower, we have agreed to limited bad act
indemnification obligations to the MSR Lender for the payment of (i) certain losses arising out of certain bad or wrongful acts of HOME Equity and HOME
Borrower with respect to the MSR Loan and (ii) a portion of the principal amount of the MSR Loan and certain other obligations under the A&R MSR loan
agreement in the event we cause certain voluntary bankruptcy events of HOME Equity or HOME Borrower. Any of such liabilities could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and/or financial condition.
MSR, who we engaged as the property manager for the properties acquired in the HOME SFR Transaction, has a limited operating history, and we have
previously had no experience with MSR. The failure of MSR to adequately perform its obligations to us or the failure of MSR to provide us with data and
reports for us in reporting to the MSR Lender under the MSR Loan would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
MSR, who we have retained to perform property management services with respect to the properties acquired in the HOME SFR Transaction, was formed in April
2012. As of the date of the HOME SFR Transaction, MSR provided property management services, including acquisition, renovation, leasing and property
management, repair and maintenance and other services with respect to a portfolio of approximately 10,000 single-family rental homes, including the acquired
properties.
There are no existing companies with a long-term established track record to demonstrate MSR’s successful operation over a significant period of time. It is
difficult to evaluate potential future performance of MSR without the benefit of any established track records from companies implementing a similar strategy.
Given MSR’s limited operating history and our limited experience working with MSR, there is no assurance that MSR will be able to adequately perform its
property management obligations, including reporting requirements under the A&R MSR loan agreement, for us or that, if MSR fails in its obligations,
replacement managers individually or collectively would be able to perform management services adequately or within existing cost and expense assumptions we
used in targeting and acquiring the properties purchased in the HOME SFR Transaction.
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Income realized from these properties may be affected by management decisions relating to the properties, which in turn may be affected by events or
circumstances impacting MSR or its affiliates, or the financial condition or results of operations of any of the foregoing. The day-to-day property management of
the acquired properties, including leasing and collection functions, is and will be performed by MSR. Prior to the HOME SFR Transaction, MSR acted as property
manager for the acquired properties. In certain circumstances and subject to the restrictions set forth in the property management agreement between HOME
Borrower and MSR, MSR has broad discretion with the respect to the management of the properties, including, without limitation, renovations, maintenance and
all matters related to leasing, including marketing, selection of tenants and lease terms. Under the terms of the property management agreement with MSR, MSR
will be required to participate in regular calls with our representatives to review its practices and provide updates regarding the performance of the acquired
properties and we will also have approval rights over capital expenditures and renovation expenditures in excess of $800 and $1000, respectively. The practices of
MSR and us may differ and through our rights under the property management agreement, the practices and procedures of MSR may also differ from what we
would determine on our own or require a longer integration period to operate with the efficiencies we target. Consequently, performance of the properties that
MSR manages may vary from the performance of the other properties in our portfolio managed by our legacy property manager, ASPS.
In certain circumstances, the A&R MSR loan agreement and the property management agreement with MSR permit us to appoint another management company
satisfying certain eligibility criteria as a replacement property manager in certain circumstances, including, without limitation, if MSR fails to perform and/or fails
to make timely any reports to us that HOME Borrower is required to make under the A&R MSR loan agreement. In addition, MSR Lender may, under certain
circumstances cause us to replace MSR. HOME Borrower’s right to terminate MSR includes termination events tied to the performance of the properties, such as
vacancy rates, retention rates, delinquency rates and rent rates. There is a high risk of a disruption in operations and possible lapse in quality when the acquired
properties experience a change in operators or key leadership personnel, particularly in the transition period immediately following such changes. There is no
assurance that one or more adequate replacement property managers capable of managing this large portfolio of single-family rental properties, would be available
and willing to assume MSR’s duties upon terms (including the compensation) that are the same or more favorable than those set forth in the property management
agreement between HOME Borrower and MSR. Even if one or more replacement property managers were engaged, there is no assurance that such replacement
managers individually or collectively would be able to perform management services adequately or within existing cost and expense assumptions.
If any of these foregoing risks materialize, this would have a material adverse effect on the performance of these properties or could cause a default of our
obligations under the A&R MSR loan agreement and our business, results of operations and financial condition would therefore be materially harmed.
Successful management of the properties acquired in the HOME SFR Transaction by MSR depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions
of key personnel of MSR who may be difficult to replace.
No guarantee can be made as to the continued employment of any other key executives or personnel of MSR who we will rely upon for the management of the
acquired properties. Increases in the number of properties under management by MSR that we may purchase from Amherst or that MSR itself manages away from
us may require MSR to hire additional qualified personnel. Continued and future success of MSR under its agreement with us also depends, in part, upon the
ability of MSR to efficiently hire and retain highly skilled managerial, investment, financial and operational personnel. Competition for highly skilled managerial,
investment, financial and operational personnel is intense. As a relatively new company, no assurance can be made that MSR will be successful in attracting and
retaining such skilled personnel or in integrating any new personnel into its organization and into the property management structure for our acquired properties.
Moreover, as MSR’s property management portfolio increases, the resources dedicated to us could decrease or require MSR personnel to focus on other clients
other than us. Such a decrease in productivity may adversely affect the management of the acquired portfolio of properties.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
In August 2015, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan of up to $100.0 million of common stock. During the third quarter of 2016 , we
repurchased an aggregate of 595,542 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $6.3 million . At September 30, 2016 ,
following such repurchases, we have remaining approximately $56.2 million authorized by our Board of Directors for share repurchases. Repurchased shares will
be held as shares available for future issuance and will be available for general corporate purposes. Below is a summary of our stock repurchases for the quarter
ending September 30, 2016 (dollars in thousands, except average price paid per share):

(a) Total Number of
Shares Purchased
July
August
September
Quarter ended September 30, 2016

—

(b) Average Price Paid per
Share
$

(c) Total Number of
Shares Purchased as Part
of Publicly
Announced Plans or
Programs

(d) Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares that may
yet be Purchased Under
Plans or Programs (1)

—

2,779,603

595,542

10.51

3,375,145

$

56,233

—

—

3,375,145

56,233

595,542

10.51

3,375,145

56,233

__________
(1) Since Board approval of repurchases is based on dollar amount, we cannot estimate the number of shares remaining to be purchased.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibits
Exhibit Number

Description

2.1

Separation Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2012, between Altisource Residential Corporation and Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 28,
2012).

2.2

Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated September 30, 2016, between MSR I, LP and Altisource Residential, L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2016).

2.3

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated September 30, 2016, between Firebird SFE I, LLC and Altisource Residential, L.P. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2016).

3.1

Articles of Restatement of Altisource Residential Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of the registrant's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on April 8, 2013).

3.2

By-laws of Altisource Residential Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form
10 filed with the Commission on December 5, 2012).

10.1

Property Management Services Agreement, dated September 30, 2016, by and between HOME SFR Borrower, LLC and Main Street
Renewal LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2016).

10.2

Side Letter, dated September 30, 2016, by and between HOME SFR Borrower, LLC and Main Street Renewal LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2016).

10.3

Amendment and Waiver Agreement, dated September 30, 2016, by and among Altisource Residential Corporation and Altisource Solutions
S.à r.l. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2016).

10.4

Loan Agreement, dated September 30, 2016, among Home SFR Borrower, LLC, as Borrower, MSR I, L.P., as a Lender, MSR II, L.P., as a
Lender, and MSR Lender LLC, as Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
October 3, 2016).

10.5

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated October 7, 2016, between Home SFR Borrower, LLC, as Borrower, and MSR Lender LLC,
as Lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 14, 2016).

10.6*

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan.

10.7*

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan.

31.1*

Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

31.2*

Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

32.1*

Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

32.2*

Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

101.INS*

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB*

XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase

101.PRE*
__________
* Filed herewith.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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Signatures
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Altisource Residential Corporation
Date:

November 7, 2016

By:

/s/

Robin N. Lowe
Robin N. Lowe
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.6

ALTISOURCE RESIDENTIAL CORPORATION
2016 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
Stock Option Award Agreement
This Stock Option Award Agreement (this “ Agreement ”) is made by and between Altisource Residential
Corporation, a Maryland corporation (the “ Corporation ”), and [●] (the “ Participant ”), effective as of [●] (the “ Date of Grant ”).
RECITALS
WHEREAS , the Corporation has adopted the Altisource Residential Corporation 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (as the
same may be amended from time to time, the “ Plan ”), which Plan is incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this
Agreement, and capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to those terms in the
Plan; and
WHEREAS , the Committee has authorized and approved the grant of an Award to the Participant of Stock Options
to purchase shares of Common Stock (“ Shares ”) on the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and this Agreement.
NOW THEREFORE , for services provided by the Participant to the Corporation or one of its Affiliates (“ Service
”) and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants set forth in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:
1.

Grant of Stock Options . The Corporation hereby grants to the Participant, effective as of the Date of Grant, the right and
option to purchase, on the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and this Agreement, all or any part of an aggregate of [●]
Shares, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Plan (the “ Options ”). The Options are intended to be nonqualified stock
options.

2.

Exercise Price . The exercise price of each Option is [●] per Share, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Plan (the “
Exercise Price ”).

3.

Vesting of Options .
(a)

General .
(i)

Subject to the Participant’s continued Service through each applicable vesting date:
1.

one-third of the Options shall vest upon the later of (A) the first anniversary of the Date of Grant and
(B) the date the Performance Goal (as defined in Section 3(a)(ii)) is attained;

2.

one-third of the Options shall vest upon the later of (A) the second anniversary of the Date of Grant
and (B) the date the Performance Goal is attained; and
1

3.

one-third of the Options shall vest upon the later of (A) the third anniversary of the Date of Grant and
(B) the date the Performance Goal is attained;

provided, however, that, except as set forth in Section 3(b), no portion of the Options shall vest if the
Performance Goal is not attained on or prior to the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant.
(ii)

(b)

For purposes of this Agreement, the “ Performance Goal ” shall be attained on the date, which date must
occur, if ever, no later than the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, that the sum of (a) the average price
per Share for the consecutive 20-trading-day period ending on such date plus (b) the amount of all reinvested
dividends, calculated on a per-share basis, from the Date of Grant through such date shall equal or exceed
125% of the price per Share on the Date of Grant (i.e., 125% of the Exercise Price). If the Performance Goal is
not attained on or prior to the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, then, except as set forth in Section 3(b),
no portion of the Options shall vest.

Termination of Service .
(i)

All unvested Options shall fully vest upon a termination of the Participant’s Service by the Corporation
without Cause or by the Participant for Good Reason, in either case, on or within two years following a
Change of Control.

(ii)

Upon a termination of the Participant’s Service by the Corporation without Cause or by the Participant for
Good Reason other than as set forth in clause (i) above and at a time when the Performance Goal has
previously been attained, a portion of the unvested Options shall immediately vest based on the product of (x)
the total number of unvested Options and (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full calendar
months elapsed from the Date of Grant or, if later, the most recent anniversary thereof, through the date of
termination, and the denominator of which is the number of full calendar months from the Date of Grant, or, if
later, the most recent anniversary thereof through the third anniversary of the Date of Grant (i.e., 36, 24 or 12).
Any portion of the unvested Options that does not vest in accordance with the immediately preceding sentence
shall be forfeited immediately, automatically and without consideration on the date of termination of Service.

(iii)

Upon a termination of the Participant’s Service by the Corporation without Cause or by the Participant for
Good Reason other than as set forth in clause (i) above and at a time when the Performance Goal has not yet
been attained, a portion of the unvested Options shall initially remain outstanding and eligible to vest based on
the product of (x) the total number of unvested Options and (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the
number of full calendar months elapsed from the Date of Grant through the date of termination (such number
not to exceed 36), and the denominator of which is 36. Such portion of the unvested Options shall remain
outstanding until the earlier of (I) the date the Performance Goal is attained, in which case such portion shall
vest, and (II) the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, in which case such portion shall be forfeited
immediately, automatically and without consideration. Any portion of the unvested Options that does not
remain outstanding in accordance with the immediately preceding sentence shall be forfeited immediately,
automatically and without consideration on the date of termination of Service.
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(iv)

All unvested Options shall fully vest upon a termination of the Participant’s Service due to death or Disability.

(v)

All vested and unvested Options will be forfeited immediately, automatically and without consideration upon
a termination of Service for Cause.

(vi)

Except as otherwise set forth in clauses (i) through (v) above, any unvested Options will be forfeited
immediately, automatically and without consideration upon a termination of Service for any reason.

(vii)

For purposes of this Agreement:
1.

“ Cause ” means gross or willful neglect of duty that is not corrected after 30 days’ written notice
thereof; misconduct, malfeasance, fraud or dishonesty that materially and adversely affects the
Corporation or its reputation in the industry; or the commission of a felony or a crime involving moral
turpitude. All determinations as to Cause shall be made by the Committee in its sole discretion.

2.

“ Disability ” means a medically determinable physical or mental impairment that is expected to result
in death or that has lasted or can be expected to last for either (x) a continuous period of at least 90
days or (y) an aggregate of 90 days in any 180-day period.

3.

“ Good Reason ” means, without the consent of the Participant, (i) a material diminution in the
Participant’s title, position, duties or responsibilities with respect to the Corporation, or (ii) the
notification of the Participant by the Corporation that the Corporation shall require the Participant to
relocate his or her primary place of Service with the Corporation to a site that is more than 50 miles
from both the Participant’s current primary place of Service and the Participant’s primary residence;
provided, however, that no act or omission described in clause (i) or (ii) shall be treated as “Good
Reason” under this Agreement unless (a) the Participant delivers to the Corporation a written statement
of the basis for Participant’s belief that Good Reason exists within 120 days following the date such
basis first arises, (b) the Corporation fails to cure the grounds constituting Good Reason within 30 days
following Participant’s delivery of such written statement, and (c) Participant actually resigns within
90 days of such failure to cure.

4.

Expiration . Any unvested Options will expire on the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, and any vested but unexercised
Options will expire on the seventh anniversary of the Date of Grant, or earlier as provided in this Agreement or the Plan (the
“ Expiration Date ”).

5.

Period of Exercise . Subject to the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, the Participant may exercise all or any part of
the vested Options at any time prior to the earliest to occur of:
(a)

the Expiration Date;

(b)

the date that is 12 months following termination of the Participant’s Service due to death or Disability;
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6.

7.

(c)

the date that is 90 days following termination of the Participant’s Service other than for death, Disability or Cause; or

(d)

the date of termination of the Participant’s Service for Cause.

Exercise of Options .
(a)

Notice of Exercise . Subject to Sections 3, 4 and 5, the Participant or, in the case of the Participant’s death or
Disability, the Participant’s representative may exercise all or any part of the vested Options (covering whole Shares)
through an approved online securities account (or as otherwise specified by the Committee) in accordance with the
procedures therein (a “ Notice of Exercise ”). The Notice of Exercise will be electronically executed by the person
exercising the Options. In the event that the Options are being exercised by the Participant’s representative, the
Notice of Exercise will be accompanied by proof (satisfactory to the Committee) of the representative’s right to
exercise the Options. The Participant or the Participant’s representative will deliver to the Committee, at the time of
giving the Notice of Exercise, payment in a form permissible under Section 7 for the full amount of the Purchase
Price (as defined below) and applicable withholding taxes as provided below.

(b)

Issuance of Shares . After all requirements with respect to the exercise of the Options have been satisfied, the
Committee will cause the Shares as to which the Options have been exercised to be issued (or, in the Committee’s
discretion, in un-certificated form, upon the books of the Corporation’s transfer agent), registered in the name of the
person exercising the Options (or in the names of such person and his or her spouse as community property or as joint
tenants with right of survivorship). Neither the Corporation nor the Committee will be liable to the Participant or any
other Person for damages relating to any delays in issuing the Shares or any mistakes or errors in the issuance of the
Shares.

(c)

Withholding Requirements . The Corporation in its sole discretion shall have the power and the right to deduct or
withhold automatically from any Shares deliverable under this Agreement, or to require the Participant or the
Participant’s representative to remit to the Corporation, the minimum statutory amount necessary to satisfy federal,
state and local taxes, domestic or foreign, required by law or regulation to be withheld with respect to any taxable
event arising as a result of this Agreement, or in the sole discretion of the Committee, such greater amount necessary
to satisfy the Participant’s expected tax liability, provided that, the withholding of such greater amount does not result
in adverse tax or accounting consequences to the Corporation (the “ Withheld Taxes ”).

Payment for Shares . The “ Purchase Price ” will be the Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Shares with respect to
which Options are being exercised. All or part of the Purchase Price and any Withheld Taxes may be paid as follows:
(a)

Cash or Check . In cash or by bank certified check.

(b)

Brokered Cashless Exercise . To the extent permitted by applicable law and the Committee, from the proceeds of a
sale through a broker on the date of exercise of some or all of the Shares to which the exercise relates. In that case, the
Participant will electronically execute a Notice of Exercise and provide the Corporation’s third-party Plan
administrator with a copy of irrevocable instructions to a broker to deliver promptly to the Corporation the amount of
sale proceeds to pay the aggregate purchase price and/or Withheld Taxes, as applicable. To
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facilitate the foregoing, the Corporation may, to the extent permitted by applicable law, enter into agreements or
coordinate procedures with one or more brokerage firms.
(c)

Net Exercise . By reducing the number of Shares otherwise deliverable upon the exercise of the Options by the
number of Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of the Purchase Price and/or Withheld Taxes, as
applicable.

(d)

Surrender of Stock . In each instance, at the sole discretion of the Committee, by surrendering, or attesting to the
ownership of, Shares that are already owned by the Participant free and clear of any restriction or limitation, unless
the Committee specifically agrees in writing to accept such Shares subject to such restriction or limitation. Such
Shares will be surrendered to the Corporation in good form for transfer and will be valued by the Corporation at their
Fair Market Value on the date of the applicable exercise of the Options, or to the extent applicable, on the date the
Withheld Taxes are to be determined. The Participant will not surrender, or attest to the ownership of, Shares in
payment of the Purchase Price (or Withheld Taxes) if such action would cause the Corporation to recognize
compensation expense (or additional compensation expense) with respect to the Options for financial reporting
purposes that otherwise would not have been recognized (collectively, “ Withheld Taxes ”).

8.

Adjustment to Options . In the event of any change with respect to the outstanding shares of Common Stock contemplated by
Section 8 of the Plan, the Options may be adjusted in accordance with Section 8 of the Plan.

9.

Miscellaneous Provisions .
(a)

Securities Laws Requirements . No Shares will be issued or transferred pursuant to this Agreement unless and until
all then applicable requirements imposed by federal and state securities and other laws, rules and regulations and by
any regulatory agencies having jurisdiction, and by any exchanges upon which the Shares may be listed, have been
fully met. As a condition precedent to the issuance of Shares pursuant to this Agreement, the Corporation may require
the Participant to take any reasonable action to meet those requirements. The Committee may impose such conditions
on any Shares issuable pursuant to this Agreement as it may deem advisable, including, without limitation,
restrictions under the Securities Act, under the requirements of any exchange upon which shares of the same class are
then listed and under any blue-sky or other securities laws applicable to those Shares.

(b)

No Rights as Shareholder . Neither the Participant nor the Participant’s representative will have any rights as a
shareholder of the Corporation with respect to any Shares subject to the Options until the Participant or the
Participant’s representative becomes entitled to receive those Shares by (i) electronically executing a Notice of
Exercise, (ii) paying the Purchase Price and Withheld Taxes as provided in this Agreement, and the Corporation
actually receiving those amounts, (iii) the Corporation issuing those Shares and entering the name of the Participant in
the register of shareholders of the Corporation as the registered holder of those Shares and (iv) satisfying any other
conditions as the Committee reasonably requires.

(c)

Transfer Restrictions . The Shares purchased by exercise of the Options will be subject to such stop-transfer orders
and other restrictions as the Committee may deem advisable under the Plan or the rules, regulations and other
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, any stock exchange upon which such shares are listed, any
applicable federal or state laws and any agreement with, or policy of, the Corporation or the Committee to which
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the Participant is a party or subject, and the Committee may cause orders or designations to be placed upon the books
and records of the Corporation’s transfer agent to make appropriate reference to such restrictions.
(d)

No Right to Continued Service . Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan confers upon the Participant any right to
continue in Service for any period of specific duration or interfere with or otherwise restrict in any way the rights of
the Corporation or any Affiliate or of the Participant, which rights are hereby expressly reserved, to terminate the
Participant’s Service at any time and for any reason, with or without Cause.

(e)

Notification . Any notification required by the terms of this Agreement will be given by the Participant (i) in a writing
addressed to the Corporation at its principal executive office, or (ii) by electronic transmission to the Corporation’s email address of the Corporation’s General Counsel. Any notification required by the terms of this Agreement will be
given by the Corporation (x) in a writing addressed to the address that the Participant most recently provided to the
Corporation, or (y) by facsimile or electronic transmission to the Participant’s primary work fax number or e-mail
address (as applicable).

(f)

Entire Agreement . This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto with
regard to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement and the Plan supersede any other agreements,
representations or understandings (whether oral or written and whether express or implied) that relate to the subject
matter of this Agreement.

(g)

Waiver . No waiver of any breach or condition of this Agreement will be deemed to be a waiver of any other or
subsequent breach or condition whether of like or different nature.

(h)

Successors and Assigns . The provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the
Corporation and its successors and assigns and upon the Participant, the Participant’s executor, personal
representative(s), distributees, administrator, permitted transferees, permitted assignees, beneficiaries, and legatee(s),
as applicable, whether or not any such person will have become a party to this Agreement and have agreed in writing
to be joined herein and be bound by the terms hereof.

(i)

Severability . The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any one or more provisions are determined to be
illegal or otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, then the remaining provisions will nevertheless be binding and
enforceable.

(j)

Amendment . Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, this Agreement will not be amended unless the amendment is
agreed to in writing by both the Participant and the Corporation.

(k)

Choice of Law; Jurisdiction . This Agreement and all claims, causes of action or proceedings (whether in contract, in
tort, at law or otherwise) that may be based upon, arise out of or relate to this Agreement will be governed by the
internal laws of the State of Maryland, excluding any conflicts- or choice-of-law rule or principle that might
otherwise refer construction or interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.

(l)

Signature in Counterparts . This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, manually or electronically, each of which
will be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures to each were upon the same instrument.
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(m)

Acceptance . The Participant hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and this Agreement. The Participant
has read and understands the terms and provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and accepts the Options subject to
all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between any term or
provision contained in this Agreement and a term or provision of the Plan, the applicable term and provision of the
Plan will govern and prevail.
[Signature page follows.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation and the Participant have executed this Stock Option Award Agreement as of the Date of
Grant.

PARTICIPANT

ALTISOURCE RESIDENTIAL CORPORATION

Signed:

By:

Printed:

Name:
Title:
[Signature Page - Options Award Agreement]

Exhibit 10.7
ALTISOURCE RESIDENTIAL CORPORATION
2016 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (this “ Agreement ”) is made by and between Altisource Residential
Corporation, a Maryland corporation (the “ Corporation ”), and [●] (the “ Participant ”), effective as of [●] (the “ Date of Grant ”).
RECITALS
WHEREAS , the Corporation has adopted the Altisource Residential Corporation 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (as the
same may be amended from time to time, the “ Plan ”), which Plan is incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this
Agreement, and capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to those terms in the
Plan; and
WHEREAS , the Committee has authorized and approved the grant of an Award to the Participant that will provide
the Participant the opportunity to acquire Shares upon the settlement of stock units (“ Restricted Stock Units ”), subject to the terms
and conditions set forth in the Plan and this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE , for services provided by the Participant to the Corporation or one of its Affiliates (“ Service
”) and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants set forth in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:
1.

Grant of Restricted Stock Unit Award . The Corporation hereby grants to the Participant [●] Restricted Stock Units, on the
terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and this Agreement, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Plan.

2.

Vesting; Forfeiture . Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and this Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units
shall vest as follows:
(a)

General . Except as otherwise provided in Section 2(b), the Restricted Stock Units shall vest in equal annual
installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the Date of Grant, subject to the Participant’s continued Service
through each applicable vesting date.

(b)

Termination of Service .
(i)

All unvested Restricted Stock Units shall fully vest upon a termination of Service by the Corporation without
Cause or by the Participant for Good Reason on or within two years following a Change of Control.

(ii)

Upon a termination of the Participant’s Service by the Corporation without Cause or by the Participant for
Good Reason other than as set forth in clause (i) above, a portion of the unvested Restricted Stock Units shall
immediately vest based on the product of (x) the total number of unvested Restricted Stock Units and (y) a
fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full calendar months elapsed from the Date of Grant, or if
later, the most recent anniversary thereof, through the date of termination of Service, and the denominator of
which is the number of full calendar months from
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the Date of Grant or, if later, the most recent anniversary thereof, to the third anniversary of the Date of Grant
(i.e., 36, 24 or 12). Any portion of the unvested Restricted Stock Units that does not vest in accordance with
the immediately preceding sentence shall be forfeited immediately, automatically and without consideration
on the date of termination of Service.

3.

(iii)

All unvested Restricted Stock Units shall fully vest upon a termination of the Participant’s Service due to
death or Disability.

(iv)

All vested and unvested Restricted Stock Units will be forfeited immediately, automatically and without
consideration upon a termination of Service for Cause.

(v)

Except as otherwise set forth in clause (i) through (iv) above, any unvested Restricted Stock units will be
forfeited immediately, automatically and without consideration upon a termination of Service for any reason.

(vi)

For purposes of this Agreement:
1.

“ Cause ” means gross or willful neglect of duty that is not corrected after 30 days’ written notice
thereof; misconduct, malfeasance, fraud or dishonesty that materially and adversely affects the
Corporation or its reputation in the industry; or the commission of a felony or a crime involving moral
turpitude. All determinations as to Cause shall be made by the Committee in its sole discretion.

2.

“ Disability ” means a medically determinable physical or mental impairment that is expected to result
in death or that has lasted or can be expected to last for either (x) a continuous period of at least 90
days or (y) an aggregate of 90 days in any 180-day period.

3.

“ Good Reason ” means, without the consent of the Participant, (i) a material diminution in the
Participant’s title, position, duties or responsibilities with respect to the Corporation, or (ii) the
notification of the Participant by the Corporation that the Corporation shall require the Participant to
relocate his or her primary place of Service with the Corporation to a site that is more than 50 miles
from both the Participant’s current primary place of Service and the Participant’s primary residence;
provided, however, that no act or omission described in clause (i) or (ii) shall be treated as “Good
Reason” under this Agreement unless (a) the Participant delivers to the Corporation a written statement
of the basis for Participant’s belief that Good Reason exists within 120 days following the date such
basis first arises, (b) the Corporation fails to cure the grounds constituting Good Reason within 30 days
following Participant’s delivery of such written statement, and (c) Participant actually resigns within
90 days of such failure to cure.

Payment .
(a)

Settlement . The Corporation shall deliver to the Participant within 45 days following the vesting date of the
Restricted Stock Units a number of Shares equal to the aggregate number of Restricted Stock Units that vest as of
such date. No fractional Shares shall be delivered;
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the Corporation shall pay cash in respect of any fractional Shares. The Corporation may deliver such Shares either
through book-entry accounts held by or in the name of the Participant or cause to be issued a certificate or certificates
representing the number of Shares to be issued in respect of the Restricted Stock Units registered in the name of the
Participant.
(b)

4.

Withholding Requirements . The Corporation in its sole discretion shall have the power and the right to deduct or
withhold automatically from any Shares deliverable under this Agreement, or to require the Participant or the
Participant’s representative to remit to the Corporation, the minimum statutory amount necessary to satisfy federal,
state and local taxes, domestic or foreign, required by law or regulation to be withheld with respect to any taxable
event arising as a result of this Agreement, or in the sole discretion of the Committee, such greater amount necessary
to satisfy the Participant’s expected tax liability, provided that, the withholding of such greater amount does not result
in adverse tax or accounting consequences to the Corporation.

Dividend Equivalent Rights .
(a)

This Award is granted together with Dividend Equivalent Rights. Prior to the date of settlement of this Award,
whenever a dividend is paid with respect to Shares, a corresponding Dividend Equivalent Right shall be credited with
respect to each outstanding Restricted Share Unit then held by the Participant in an amount equal to the amount paid
as a dividend in respect of one Share.

(b)

If thus credited prior to the vesting date, such Dividend Equivalent Right shall be subject to the same vesting,
forfeiture, settlement and other terms and conditions as the underlying Restricted Share Unit with respect to which it
was credited; provided, that settlement shall be in cash rather than in Shares.

(c)

If credited on or following the vesting date but prior to the date of settlement, such Dividend Equivalent Right shall
be fully vested and not subject to forfeiture and shall be paid to the Participant in cash within 30 days following the
date the dividend to which it relates is paid.

5.

Adjustment of Shares . In the event of any change with respect to the outstanding shares of Common Stock contemplated by
Section 8 of the Plan, the Restricted Stock Units may be adjusted in accordance with Section 8 of the Plan.

6.

Miscellaneous Provisions .
(a)

Securities Laws Requirements . No Shares will be issued or transferred pursuant to this Agreement unless and until
all then applicable requirements imposed by federal and state securities and other laws, rules and regulations and by
any regulatory agencies having jurisdiction, and by any exchanges upon which the Shares may be listed, have been
fully met. As a condition precedent to the issuance of Shares pursuant to this Agreement, the Corporation may require
the Participant to take any reasonable action to meet those requirements. The Committee may impose such conditions
on any Shares issuable pursuant to this Agreement as it may deem advisable, including, without limitation,
restrictions under the Securities Act, under the requirements of any exchange upon which shares of the same class are
then listed and under any blue-sky or other securities laws applicable to those Shares.
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(b)

No Rights as Shareholder . Prior to settlement of the Restricted Stock Units in Shares, neither the Participant nor the
Participant’s representative will have any rights as a shareholder of the Corporation with respect to any Shares
underlying the Restricted Stock Units.

(c)

Transfer Restrictions . The Shares delivered hereunder will be subject to such stop-transfer orders and other
restrictions as the Committee may deem advisable under the Plan or the rules, regulations and other requirements of
the Securities and Exchange Commission, any stock exchange upon which such shares are listed, any applicable
federal or state laws and any agreement with, or policy of, the Corporation or the Committee to which the Participant
is a party or subject, and the Committee may cause orders or designations to be placed upon the books and records of
the Corporation’s transfer agent to make appropriate reference to such restrictions.

(d)

No Right to Continued Service . Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan confers upon the Participant any right to
continue in Service for any period of specific duration or interfere with or otherwise restrict in any way the rights of
the Corporation or any Affiliate or of the Participant, which rights are hereby expressly reserved, to terminate the
Participant’s Service at any time and for any reason, with or without Cause.

(e)

Notification . Any notification required by the terms of this Agreement will be given by the Participant (i) in a writing
addressed to the Corporation at its principal executive office, or (ii) by electronic transmission to the Corporation’s email address of the Corporation’s General Counsel. Any notification required by the terms of this Agreement will be
given by the Corporation (x) in a writing addressed to the address that the Participant most recently provided to the
Corporation, or (y) by facsimile or electronic transmission to the Participant’s primary work fax number or e-mail
address (as applicable).

(f)

Entire Agreement . This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto with
regard to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement and the Plan supersede any other agreements,
representations or understandings (whether oral or written and whether express or implied) that relate to the subject
matter of this Agreement.

(g)

Waiver . No waiver of any breach or condition of this Agreement will be deemed to be a waiver of any other or
subsequent breach or condition whether of like or different nature.

(h)

Successors and Assigns . The provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the
Corporation and its successors and assigns and upon the Participant, the Participant’s executor, personal
representative(s), distributees, administrator, permitted transferees, permitted assignees, beneficiaries and legatee(s),
as applicable, whether or not any such person will have become a party to this Agreement and have agreed in writing
to be joined herein and be bound by the terms hereof.

(i)

Severability . The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any one or more provisions are determined to be
illegal or otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, then the remaining provisions will nevertheless be binding and
enforceable.

(j)

Amendment . Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, this Agreement will not be amended unless the amendment is
agreed to in writing by both the Participant and the Corporation.
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(k)

Choice of Law; Jurisdiction . This Agreement and all claims, causes of action or proceedings (whether in contract, in
tort, at law or otherwise) that may be based upon, arise out of or relate to this Agreement will be governed by the
internal laws of the State of Maryland, excluding any conflicts or choice-of-law rule or principle that might otherwise
refer construction or interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.

(l)

Signature in Counterparts . This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, manually or electronically, each of which
will be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures to each were upon the same instrument.

(m)

Acceptance . The Participant hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and this Agreement. The Participant
has read and understands the terms and provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and accepts the Restricted Stock
Units subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between any
term or provision contained in this Agreement and a term or provision of the Plan, the applicable term and provision
of the Plan will govern and prevail.

[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation and the Participant have executed this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement as of the
Date of Grant.

PARTICIPANT

ALTISOURCE RESIDENTIAL CORPORATION

Signed:

By:

Printed:

Name:
Title:
[Signature Page - Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement]

Exhibit 31.1
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, George G. Ellison, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Altisource Residential Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a–15(f) and 15d–15(f)) for the registrant and
have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date:

November 7, 2016

By:

/s/

George G. Ellison
George G. Ellison
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Robin N. Lowe, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Altisource Residential Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a–15(f) and 15d–15(f)) for the registrant and
have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date:

November 7, 2016

By:

/s/

Robin N. Lowe
Robin N. Lowe
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of Altisource Residential Corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies on the date hereof, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§1350(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2016
(“Form 10-Q”), filed concurrently herewith by the Company, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date:

November 7, 2016

By:

/s/

George G. Ellison
George G. Ellison
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of Altisource Residential Corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies on the date hereof, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§1350(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2016
(“Form 10-Q”), filed concurrently herewith by the Company, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date:

November 7, 2016

By:

/s/

Robin N. Lowe
Robin N. Lowe
Chief Financial Officer

